North Little Rock Planning Commission

, rLR October 10, 2023 - Agenda / Public Hearing 4:00 PM

W City Council Chambers — 300 Main Street, NLR, AR 72114

Call to Order

* Roll Call
* Reminder to speak into the microphone

Administrative:

Approval of Minutes: * September 12, 2023

Planning Commission Hearing Items:

1.

Special Use 2023-26 a Special Use to allow the continuation of a Type 2 Short-term Rental in an R1 zone
@ 105 Wisteria Dr

Special Use 2023-33 a Special Use to allow the continuation of a Type 2 Short-term Rental in an R1 zone
@ 5006 Lockridge Rd

Special Use 2023-34 a Special Use to allow the continuation of a Type 2 Short-term Rental in an R1 zone
@ 6705 Pontiac Dr

Special Use 2023-36 a Special Use to allow the continuation of a Type 2 Short-term Rental in an R2 zone
@ 7 Longview Road

Special Use 2023-38 a Special Use to allow the continuation of a Type 2 Short-term Rental in an R1 zone
@ 4900 Hickory Ave

Conditional Use 2023-12 a Conditional Use to allow auto sales in a C4 zone @ 4620 MacArthur Dr
Rezone 2023-21 a rezoning from R to R4 to recognize two existing single family structures on a single lot
@ 4601 Pike Ave

Rezone 2023-22 a rezoning from CONS to C3 @ the Southwest corner of I-40 and North Hills Blvd

9. Rezone 2023-23 a rezoning from R4 to C6 @ 800 N Olive St

10.
11.

12.

13.
14.

Rezone 2023-24 a rezoning from R4 to C6 @ 720 N Olive St

SD 2023-61 Division 49 Add Lots 1 — 5 Combined - Preliminary & Final Plat located in the 4900 Block of
Division St

Rezone 2023-25 Jimmy Doyle Country Club Add Lot 1 from C4 to 12 to allow a truck repair facility @
11800 Maybelline Rd

SD 2023-64 Jimmy Doyle Country Club Add Lot 1 Replat and SPR @ 11800 Maybelline Rd

Special Use 2023-27 a Special Use to allow the continuation of a Type 2 Short-term Rental in an R1 zone
@ 3818 N Magnolia St



NLR PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING PROCEDURES

Public Hearings: The regularly scheduled meeting is held on the second Tuesday of each month at
4:00 PM in the City Council Chambers. All Planning Commission meetings are open to the
public. Typical meetings begin with a roll call, approval of minutes, correspondence and staff
reports, committee reports, unfinished business, new business, public comments and
adjournment.  Public hearings, zoning actions and special uses are typically the latter half of
the meeting and follow development review items presented as summary recommendations of
the Development Review Committee.

Voting: There are 9 Commissioners. A quorum consists of 6 members. “Robert’s Rules of Order”
apply unless the Commission has outlined alternative procedures. According to the current by-laws, all
business must be approved by a minimum of 5 votes. A simple majority of those members present does
not necessarily approve a motion.

1. No person shall address the Planning Commission without first being recognized by the Chair.

2. All questions and remarks shall be made from the podium and addressed through the Chair.

3. After being recognized, each person shall state their name and address for the record.

4. When a group of citizens is present to speak about an item, a spokesperson shall be selected by the
group to address the Planning Commission. Each presentation by a spokesperson shall be limited to 3
minutes.

5. Anyone from a group may be recognized if they have something new or additional information to
add to an item. This additional presentation shall be limited to 3 minutes.

6. Individual (not representing a citizen group) presentations shall be limited to 3 minutes.

7. All remarks shall be addressed to the Planning Commission as a whole and not to any individual
member.

8. No person other than members of the Planning Commission and the person having the floor shall be
permitted to enter into any discussion, either directly or through a member of the Planning Commission,
without permission of the Chair.

9. Once the question is called for or a public hearing is closed, no person in the audience shall address
the Planning Commission on the matter without first securing permission to do so by a majority vote of
the Planning Commission.

10. Anyone wishing to submit exhibits for the record shall provide the clerk with copies for each
Planning Commissioner, one for the record, and for the Planning Director.

11. Anyone wishing to read a statement into the record shall provide the secretary with a written copy of
the statement.



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Minute Summary
September 12, 2023

Chairman Clifton called the meeting of the North Little Rock Planning Commission to order at 4:00 PM
in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 300 Main Street, North Little Rock, AR. Roll-call found a quorum
to be present; a quorum being six (6) members present.

Planning Commission Members Present:
Norman Clifton, Chair

Steve White, Vice-Chairman

Emanuel Banks

Don Chambers

Charlie Foster

Junior Phillips (4:13 pm)

Renee Pierce

Edward Wallace

Members Absent:
Vandy Belasco

Staff Present:
Shawn Spencer, Director of Planning
Donna James, Assistant Director of Planning

Elaine Lee, City Attorney

Administrative:

A motion was made by Commissioner Chambers and Seconded by Commissioner White to excuse those
not present. By voice vote, the Commission members voted unanimously in favor of the motion, (7/0/2)

Chairman Clifton announced the disposition of the following items stating —

Item 4, Rezone 2023-21 @ 4601 Pike Ave — Postponed to the October 10, 2023 hearing

Items 16, & 17, Rezone 2023-16 a rezoning from C6 to C5 @ 425 W Broadway (to allow a
convenience store with fuel pumps) & SD2023-58 Westgate Manor Addition Lots 1A & 1B Replat
and SPR to allow a convenience store with fuel pumps @ 425 W Broadway — had been withdrawn
from consideration

Approval of Minutes:

Commissioner Chambers made a motion to approve the August 8, 2023, minute summary as submitted.
Commissioner Pierce provided a second to the motion. By voice vote, the Commission members voted
unanimously in favor of the motion, (7/0/2).



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 2 of 20

Planning Commission Hearing Items:

1. Rezone 2023-19 a rezoning from 12 to I1 to allow administrative offices for the North
Little Rock Public Schools @ 3201 HWY 161

Adam Jenkins was present representing the NLR School District. Chairman Clifton called the item
requesting the applicant come forward to present their request. The applicant stated the request
was to rezone the property to allow North Little Rock School District to use the existing buildings
as administrative offices for the school district.

Chairman Clifton questioned if there was anyone in the audience wishing to speak for or against the
item. Chairman Clifton questioned if there were any questions or concerns of the Commissioners. There
being none, Chairman Clifton called for a roll call vote -

Banks Yes | Belasco Absent | Chambers Yes —|
Foster Yes Phillips Absent Pierce Yes |
Wallace Yes White Yes Clifton Yes ]

Rezone 2023-19 was approved with (7) affirmative votes, (0) no votes and (2) absent.

2. Rezone 2023-18 a rezoning from Rt1 to R2 to recognize and existing single family home
@ 14511 Saddlewood Dr

Ms. Jenny Moses was present representing the request. Chairman Clifton called the item
requesting the applicant come forward to present their request. The applicant stated the request
was to rezone the property to recognize an existing site built single-family home constructed on the
site.

Chairman Clifton questioned if there was anyone in the andience wishing to speak for or against the
item. Chairman Clifton questioned if there were any questions or concerns of the Commissioners. There
being none, Chairman Clifton called for a roll call vote -

Banks Yes Belasco Absent Chambers Yes
Foster Yes Phillips Absent Pierce Yes
Wallace Yes White Yes Clifton Yes

RZ2023-19 was approved with (7) affirmative votes, (0) no votes and (2) absent.

3. Rezone 2023-20 a rezoning from Rt1 to R2 to recognize and existing single family home @

14421 Saddlewood Dr



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 3 0f 20

Ms. Candice Woodruff was present representing the request. Chairman Clifton called the item
requesting the applicant come forward to present their request. The applicant stated the request
was to rezone the property to recognize an existing site built single-family home constructed on the
site.

Chairman Clifton questioned if there was anyone in the audience wishing to speak for or against the
item. Chairman Clifton questioned if there were any questions or concerns of the Commissioners. There
being none, Chairman Clifton called for a roll call vote -

Banks Yes Belasco Absent Chambers Yes
Foster Yes Phillips Absent Pierce Yes
Wallace Yes | White Yes Clifton Yes

RZ2023-20 was approved with (7) affirmative votes, (0) no votes and (2) absent.

5. A Special Use SU2023-24 to allow the continuation of a Type 2 STR in an R1 zone @ 4426
Arlington

Mr. & Ms. Henderson were present representing the request. Chairman Clifton called the item
requesting the applicant come forward to present their request. The applicant stated the request
was to recognize an existing short-term rental on the property. The applicant stated the home had
been a long-term rental in the past and after the last tenant vacated the site, they decided to offer
the unit as a short-term rental. Mr. Henderson stated there were a number of issues with previous
renters. He stated there had been cars on blocks, lawns not being mowed and numerous other
issues. He stated since the unit was offered as a short-term rental there had been few if any issues
with the property. He stated they lived less than two miles away. He stated his wife managed the
property. He stated they felt the property was an asset to the community and not a negative to the
neighborhood.

Chairman Clifton questioned if there was anyone in the audience wishing to speak for or against the
item. He informed the Commission staff had provided (5) letters regarding the request. He stated there
were (4) letters in opposition and (1) in support.

There was a general discussion by the Commission concerning the request. Commissioner Pierce
questioned the number of occupants allowed. Ms. Henderson stated the house was a 3-bedroom house
and there was a sectional and an air mattress, which allowed up to 8-persons. Chairman Clifton
questioned the time-frame the unit had been a rental. Ms. Henderson stated they lived in the house for
10 years and then rented the house for approximately 10 years to different long-term renters. She stated
the home had been offered as a short-tern rental since July of last year.



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 4 of 20

Chairman Clifton questioned the applicant if they had reviewed the recommendations presented by staff.
The applicant replied in the affirmative stating they would comply.

Chairman Clifton questioned if there was anyone in the audience wishing to speak for or against the
item. Chairman Clifton questioned if there were any questions or concerns of the Commissioners. There
being none, Chairman Clifton called for a roll call vote -

Banks Yes Belasco Absent Chambers No \
Foster Yes Phillips Absent Pierce Yes |
Wallace Yes White Yes Clifton Yes \

SU2023-24 was approved with (6) affirmative votes, (1) no vote and (2) absent.

6. A Special Use SU2023-25 to allow a Bed and Breakfast in an R4 zone @ 3900 Monticello
Dr

Antonio and Susan Ridgel were present representing the request. Mr. Ridgel stated the request was
to allow them to offer their home as a bed and breakfast. He stated the request also included the
allowance of a sign. Chairman Clifton questioned if they had received a copy of the staff
recommended conditions and if they were agreeable. Mr. Ridgel stated the conditions were
agreeable.

Chairman Clifton questioned if there was anyone in the audience wishing to speak for or against the
item. He informed the Commission staff had provided them with letters in opposition of the request.

Ms. Toby Jost stated she lived on the corner of Corn Wallis and Monticello. She stated the concern was
the applicant’s home backed up to her home. She stated the use first caught her attention when a red
neon sign was placed in the window stating the business was open. She stated she called the City and
the sign was removed but was later reinstalled. She stated she had pictures of the sign the applicant was
seeking approval to allow. She stated she did not feel anyone expected signage offering business services
in a single family neighborhood. She stated she had a teenage daughter. She stated her pool could be
seen out the window of the applicant’s second floor. She stated she had seen numerous cars with out of
state license plates at the home. She stated her husband was an airline pilot and was gone on numerous
occasions. She stated she did not like being home alone knowing there could be strangers staying next
door. She stated on Google the home was being offered as a bed and breakfast. She stated she was
concerned with the quality of guest.

Commissioner White questioned if the business was operational. Staff stated the applicant had a business
license for an owner occupied short-term rental. Staff stated the current request was to allow serving of
a meal and the placement of a sign.



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 5 0f 20

There was a general discussion by the Commission concerning the request. Commissioner Pierce stated
if the request was denied the applicant could continue to operate as a short-term rental. Commissioner
Foster stated the only difference was to allow them to serve a meal.

There was a general discussion concerning the applicant’s request for a sign. Commissioner Foster made
a motion to disallow a sign. Commissioner Pierce provided a second to the motion. Ms. Lee stated the
motion would likely be to strike condition six listed in the staff recommended conditions. She stated this
would prohibit a sign. Commissioner White stated his objection was for signage in a neighborhood.

Chairman Clifton called for a role call vote on the motion to strike #6 in the conditions —

_[ Banks Yes Belasco Absent Chambers Yes
Foster Yes Phillips Yes Pierce Yes
Wallace Yes White Yes Clifton Yes

The motion to strike the condition to allow a sign was approved by 8 affirmative votes and 1 absent.

Mr. Robert Haney stated the neighborhood was not told of the applicant’s approval of a short-term rental
and questioned if there was anything that could be done about the use now. Staff stated in any residential
zoning district owner occupied short-term rentals were allowed without public review.

Ms. Ashley Wright stated if approved there would be a business located in her quiet residential
neighborhood. She stated she did not feel anyone wanted a business in their neighborhood. She stated
they were renting rooms for $50/night, not even market rate.

Chairman Clifton questioned if there were any questions or concerns of the Commissioners. There being
none, Chairman Clifton called for a roll call vote -

Banks Yes | Belasco Absent Chambers No
Foster Yes | Phillips Yes Pierce No
| Wallace Yes | White No Clifton No

SU2023-25 was denied with (4) affirmative votes, (4) no votes and (1) absent.

7. A Special Use SU2023-28 to allow the continuation of a Type 2 STR in an R1 zone @ 118
E A Ave

Mr. Tyler Henderson was present representing the request. He stated his request was to continue to
operate a short-term rental on the property. He stated the unit had been a short-term rental for seven

years.



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 6 of 20

Chairman Clifton questioned if there was anyone in the audience wishing to speak for or against the
item.

Mr. Jerry Covan stated he lived on Skyline Drive and had lived there for 13 years. He stated he was
unaware the property was being offered as a short-term rental. He stated the home was being rented and
the request was to offer the smaller unit as a rental as well. He stated he did not feel this was a good fit
for the neighborhood. He stated the allowance would put the neighborhood in jeopardy for additional
business to come into the quiet historic neighborhood.

Mr. Mike Wilson addressed the Commission stating he was not aware there was a short-term rental in
the area. He stated he purchased his property due to the Park Hill’s historic character. He stated he was
concerned with the potential for the number of rentals.

Mr. Michael Shield stated he had been living in the house behind the property for 29 years and he did
not want the request to pass.

Mr. David Priest stated he was a live-long resident of North Little Rock. He stated the history of Park
Hill should be protected. He stated the historic part of Park Hill should be protected along with the
residents.

Chairman Clifton questioned if there were any questions or concerns of the Commissioners. There being
none, Chairman Clifton called for a roll call vote -

Banks Yes Belasco Absent Chambers Yes |
Foster No Phillips No Pierce No ]
Wallace  No | White No Clifton No |

SU2023-28 was denied with (2) affirmative votes, (6) no votes and (1) absent.
8. A Special Use SU2023-29 to allow a Daycare Center in a C2 zone @ 700 N Beech St

Ms. Carla Hardiman was present representing the request. She stated she was standing in for her
son in his request for a Special Use to allow a daycare at 700 Beech Street. Chairman Clifton
questioned if she had received the staff comments and if they were agreeable. Ms. Hardiman stated
she had received the comments and all were acceptable.

Chairman Clifton questioned if there was anyone in the audience wishing to speak for or against the
item. Chairman Clifton questioned if there were any questions or concerns of the Commissioners. There
being none, Chairman Clifton called for a roll call vote -



North Little Rock Planning Commission

Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 7 of 20
Banks Yes Belasco Absent Chambers Yes
Foster Yes Phillips Yes Pierce Yes
Wallace Yes White Yes Clifton Yes

SU2023-29 was approved with (8) affirmative votes, (0) no votes and (1) absent.

9. A Special Use SU2023-30 to allow the continuation of a Type 2 STR in an R1 zone @
6411 Countrywood Cove

Ms. Sophia Nguyenle was present representing the request. She stated she had been operating the
unit as a short-term rental since October of last year. She stated she had three children and when
they traveled it was difficult to get a room she and her family could stay in comfortably. She stated
they had to get two rooms and the family could not all stay together. She stated short-term rentals
were a better option. She stated there were rules for the renters of her rental such as no parties and
no drinking. Chairman Clifton question if Ms. Nguyenle had received the staff comments and if
they were agreeable. She replied in the affirmative.

Chairman Clifton questioned if there was anyone in the audience wishing to speak for or against the
item.

Mr. Wayne Sullivan addressed the Commission in opposition of the request. He stated the Bill of
Assurance for the subdivision stated there were to be no businesses located in the Country Side
Subdivision. He stated the BOA prohibited a number of uses including hotels and motels. He stated the
short-term rental was essentially a hotel. He stated the home was located in a cul de sac. He stated with
overnight stayers you could not control how they parked. He stated last weekend the overnight stayers
were parking in the yard. He stated this devalued a neighborhood. He stated this was a 3-bedroom house.
He stated up to (9) people could stay. He stated that created the potential for (9) cars, trying to park on
at the end of a cul de sac. He stated in the past construction workers had rented the unit. He stated in
addition to their trucks they brought their job trailers. He stated the turn-around radius blocked the
sidewalk.

MR. Farris Whaley addressed the Commission in opposition of the request. He stated this was a quiet
street with 10 houses. He stated he was opposed to any changes in the neighborhood.

Ms. Laurie Criddle stated she lived in the cul de sac adjacent to the homes to the north. She stated both
cul de sacs had large number of children. She stated the area did not have a great deal of crime. She
stated the neighborhood did not need the use.

Chairman Clifton questioned if there were any questions or concerns of the Commissioners. There being
none, Chairman Clifton called for a roll call vote -



North Little Rock Planning Commission

Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 8 of 20

| Banks No | Belasco Absent Chambers No
Foster No Phillips No Pierce No
Wallace No White No Clifton No

SU2023-30 was denied with (0) affirmative votes, (8) no votes and (1) absent.

10. A Special Use SU2023-21 to allow an Events Center in a C3 zone @ 4000 Vali Court
The applicant was not present. The item was postponed to the next agenda.

11. A Special Use 2023-15 to allow youth mentoring in a R3 zone @ 2001 Parker St

Mr. Anthony Pettigrew was present representing the request. Chairman Clifton requested Mr. Pettigrew
address the Commission on the merits of his request. Mr. Pettigrew stated he wished a Special Use to
allow a youth mentoring program. He stated the program would provide intervention for youth.
Chairman Clifton questioned if Mr. Pettigrew had reviewed the staff recommended conditions for the
request and if they are acceptable. Mr. Pettigrew stated he was agreeable to the conditions.

Commissioner Chambers questioned the parking required for the use. Stating there appeared to be four
on-site parking spaces and potentially seven on the street. Staff stated based on the square footage and
the applicants proposed use the site would require between eight to ten on-site parking spaces.
Commissioner Chambers questioned if the use were approved and the applicant could not provide the
required parking what would be the outcome. Staff stated if he could not provide the parking he would
not receive an zoning certificate.

Chairman Clifton questioned if there was anyone in the audience wishing to speak for or against the
item. Chairman Clifton questioned if there were any questions or concerns of the Commissioners. There
being none, Chairman Clifton called for a roll call vote -

Banks Yes Belasco Absent Chambers Yes }
Foster Yes Phillips Yes Pierce Yes ’
Wallace Yes White Yes Clifton Yes

SU2023-15 was approved with (8) affirmative votes, (0) no votes and (1) absent.



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 9 of 20

12.

SD2023-55 Lusk Commercial Park Addition Lot 2 Final Plat and SPR @ 10300
Maumelle Blvd (to allow auto repair major in a C3 zone)

The applicant was present representing the request. Commissioner Chambers stated the Design Review
Committee reviewed the application, the applicant was agreeable to the conditions, and the Committee
recommended approval conditioned upon:

1. Engineering requirements on detention:

a.

Pay the drainage in-lieu fee of $5000/acre for commercial/industrial development instead of
providing onsite detention. (OR) Provide on-site stormwater detention as well as clear
calculations showing detention volume is sufficient, or demonstrate to City Engineer on-site
detention is not required (based on proposed development) by providing detention calculations
showing pre and post site runoff comparisons.

2. Engineering requirements before the plat will be signed:

a.

b.
c.

Provide 2 street improvements (street, drainage, curb and gutter, sidewalk, streetlights) or a
performance bond or request a waiver from City Council.

Street improvements must be approved by City Engineer and accepted by City Council.

Show and label the boundary of the detention area as a drainage easement if applicable.

3. Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:

a.
b.

oo

O

A signed and recorded plat must be on file with the Planning Department.
Prior to construction, Owner’s Engineer shall submit stormwater design report for review and
approval by the City Engineer. Stormwater plans and detention calculations are to be approved
by City Engineer and a written approval provided to Planning Department. Drainage submittal
shall include, as a minimum, the following:

i.  Proposed pipe material specifications.

ii. Proposed trench and bedding details, materials and specifications.
Provide CNLR Grading Permit application to City Engineer with grading plans.
Provide CNLR Stormwater Permit application to City Engineer with half size erosion control
plan
showing silt fence, storm inlet protection, and drainage details.
Provide copy of ARDOT driveway permit for Maumelle Blvd.
Provide copy of Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) Stormwater Permit to
City
Engineer.
Provide copy of Arkansas Department of Health approval for water and sewer facilities to
NLR Planning Department if an extension of a main is required.
Prior to construction, Owner’s Architect/Engineer shall submit signed construction plans and
specifications (PDF format) to NLR Planning Department.
Prior to construction, Owner’s Architect/Engineer shall submit digital maps for all stormwater
drainage features in an ArcGIS or AutoCAD file to the City Engineer. The digital maps shall be



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 10 of 20

natively in State Plane coordinate system, Arkansas North Zone, North American Datum 1983,
units as feet; or the map must have sufficient points for georeferencing. The associated attribute
data table from the submitted file shall match the fields contained within the “SW Attribute Data
Entry Template.xlsx” as provided by City Engineering Department. All Control, Linear, and
Junction map features will be annotated by a unique identifier that will correspond to the same
unique identifier in the “SW Attribute Data Entry Template.x1sx” or GIS attribute table. Data for
each attribute column in the “SW Attributed Data Entry Template.xlsx” file shall be chosen from
the drop-down options of each cell, or chosen as “Other” (if not listed) and described in the
comments field. At the completion of the project, As-Builts of these shapefiles in ArcGIS or
AutoCAD format, along with associated attribute data table, shall be submitted to the City
Engineer.

4. Meet the requirements of the City Engineer, including:

a.

b.

© o A

h.

Prior to any excavation/street cuts within street ROW, provide CNLR Excavation Permit to City
Engineer and Barricade Plan Permit to NLR Traffic Services.

Contractor shall notify City Engineer at least (1) day prior to the construction of all stormwater
pipes and inlet structures within City ROW.

At the end of construction, Owner/Developer shall have a Professional Engineer, licensed in the
State of Arkansas, certify that all street and stormwater improvements in conjunction with this
subdivision and/or the proposed development have been inspected and constructed in accordance
with the approved plans and meet all City of North Little Rocks Standard Specifications.
Driveways shall not be closer than 40" to adjoining streets or 10' from adjoining property lines.
Spacing between proposed commercial/industrial driveways shall not be closer than 40°.
Driveway widths shall be labeled and shall be 10” minimum to 40’ maximum.

Cross drains in the ROW shall be labeled and shall be RCP with flared end sections unless
otherwise approved by Engineering.

All driveways are to be concrete within the ROW.

5. Planning requirements before the plat will be signed:

a.

b.
c.

Plat will be submitted to NLR Planning Department in CAD compatible DXF and/or DWG
format, tied to Arkansas State Plane Coordinates.

Provide cross access easement on plat with abutting property as shown on the plat.

Provide 10’ utility easements around property perimeter as shown on the plat.

6. Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:

o po o

02

Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.

Dumpster to have masonry screening on (3) sides and an opaque fence.

All fencing materials must comply with the materials allowed within the zoning ordinance.

No fence is to be located in front of the building.

Provide street trees or provide a bond.

Provide streetlights or provide a bond.

All exterior lighting shall be directed downward and shielded to not encroach onto neighboring
properties.

7. Meet the requirements of the Master Street Plan, including:



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 11 of 20

b.

Provide 5' sidewalks and ramps with a minimum of 5’ green space between sidewalk and curb
to ADA standards and City standards along the access easement adjacent to the proposed
parking.

Meet the requirements of Maumelle Blvd Access Management Plan.

8. Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:

a.
b.

All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.

Any new site development must comply with the City’s landscape and buffer ordinance
requirements.

Provide a minimum of (8) street trees adjacent to the Maumelle Blvd right-of-way.

1. Street trees are to be chosen from Section 7.5 of the North Little Rock zoning code
Trees from Table B shall be spaced every 30’ to achieve the required number of trees;
trees from Table C shall be spaced every 25’; or trees from Table D shall be used if
beneath overhead power lines and spaced every 15°.

Provide trees within the parking areas

1. Trees 10° from the edge of parking area may serve for the parking lot shading
requirements, but may not satisfy more than 50 percent of the overall requirement for
the parking lot or area.

ii.  Parking lot trees are to be chosen from Table B or C, Section 7.5 of the North Little
Rock zoning code, Table D shall be used if beneath overhead power lines.

Provide shrubs adjacent to the front of the parking bays.

1. A continuous screen of shrubs shall be required for any landscape strip adjacent to any
parking area.

ii.  Only shrubs from the approved planting list will count toward this requirement, unless
approved by the Planning Commission. Shrubs shall be 18” in height at planting and be
planted a maximum 3’ apart.

Note turf, groundcover, or mulch (species or type) on the development plan

i.  Ground cover shall be selected from Section 7.5 of the North Little Rock zoning code.
Plant materials / turf from Table J, or mulch of shredded bark or stone shall be applied
in all landscaped areas.

Plant material shall be irrigated by an automatic underground irrigation system.

Wheel stops shall be required when parking areas abut sidewalks, landscaped areas or
pedestrian areas. No portion of a vehicle shall encroach onto a sidewalk, landscaped area or
pedestrian area.

9. Meet the following requirements concerning signage:

a.
b.
C.

All signs require a separate permit review.

Provide sign location on site plan.

All signs must comply with Article Fourteen — Sign Code and the Maumelle Blvd Sign Overlay
District.

10. Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal, including:

a.
b.

Provide an approved fire protection plan.
Meet the requirements of the 2021 Arkansas Fire Prevention Code including:



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 12 0of 20

1. A Group F-1 and S-1 fire areas exceeding 12,000 square feet shall be equipped with
an automatic fire sprinkler system. (Volume 2 Section 903.2.4 & 903.2.9)
ii.  Group S-1 storage facilities used for the repair of commercial motor vehicles where
the fire area exceeds 5000 square feet shall have an automatic fire sprinkler system.
(Volume 2 Section 903.2.9.1)
iii.  There shall be a fire hydrant within 400’ of any portion the building if
unsprinklered, within 600’ if sprinklered. (Volume 1 Section 507.5.1)
iv.  Meet the hydrant spacing and fire flow requirements of the fire code. (Volume 1
Appendix B & C)
v.  Fire Apparatus access roads shall have an unobstructed width of not less than 20
feet. (Volume 1 Section 503.2.1)
c. Fire Apparatus access roads will support 85,000 Ibs. (NLR Ordinance 9267)
11. Meet the requirements of CAW, including:

a. All Central Arkansas Water requirements in effect at the time of request for water service must
be met.

b. Please submit plans for water facilities and/or fire protection system to Central Arkansas Water
for review. Plan revisions may be required after additional review.

c¢. Contact Central Arkansas Water regarding procedures for installation of water facilities and/or
fire service. Approval of plans by the Arkansas Department of Health Engineering Division and
Little Rock Fire Department is required.

d. The facilities on-site will be private. When meters are planned off private lines, private facilities
shall be installed to Central Arkansas Water's material and construction specifications and
installation will be inspected by an engineer, licensed to practice in the State of Arkansas.
Execution of Customer Owned Line Agreement is required.

e. Due to the nature of this facility, installation of an approved reduced pressure zone backflow
preventer assembly (RPZ) is required on the domestic water service. This assembly must be
installed prior to the first point of use. Central Arkansas Water (CAW) requires that upon
installation of the RPZA, successful tests of the assembly must be completed by a Certified
Assembly Tester licensed by the State of Arkansas and approved by CAW. The test results must
be sent to CAW's Cross Connection Section within ten days of installation and annually
thereafter. Contact the Cross Connection Section at 377-1226 if you would like to discuss
backflow prevention requirements for this project.

f. Fire sprinkler systems which do not contain additives such as antifreeze shall be isolated with a
double detector check valve assembly. If additives are used, a reduced pressure zone backflow
preventer shall be required.

12. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater, including:

a. Sanitary sewer main extension required to serve property — Have the owner’s engineer submit a
plan for a public main extension to our office for review.

b. Sand/Oil Interceptor will likely be required.

¢. White Oak Connection fee applies. Payment of this fee is required prior to connection to
NLRW’s collection system.



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 13 of 20

d. Please submit a full set of plans to NLRW for review and approval prior to construction
13. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.
14. Meet the requirements of Rock Region Metro.

Commissioner Wallace provided a second to the motion. By voice vote, the Commission voted
unanimously for approval (8/0/1).

13.  SD2023-56 Cunningham’s Addition Lot 8 Block 47 Replat and SPR @ 805 N Cypress
St (to allow a 6 bedroom assisted living facility)

The applicant was present representing the request. Commissioner Chambers stated the Design Review
Committee reviewed the application, the applicant was agreeable to the conditions, and the Committee
recommended approval conditioned upon:

1. Engineering requirements on detention:

a. Pay the drainage in-lieu fee of $5000/acre for commercial/industrial development instead of
providing onsite detention. (OR) Provide on-site stormwater detention as well as clear
calculations showing detention volume is sufficient, or demonstrate to City Engineer on-site
detention is not required (based on proposed development) by providing detention calculations
showing pre and post site runoff comparisons.

2. Engineering requirements before the plat will be signed:

a. If currently not in place, provide }2 street improvements (street, drainage, curb and gutter,
sidewalk, streetlights) or a performance bond.

b. Street improvements must be approved by City Engineer and accepted by City Council.

c. Show and label boundary of detention area as a drainage easement.

3. Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:

a. A signed and recorded plat must be on file with the Planning Department.

b. Prior to construction, Owner’s Engineer shall submit stormwater design report for review and
approval by the City Engineer. Stormwater plans and detention calculations are to be approved
by City Engineer and a written approval provided to Planning Department. Drainage submittal
shall include, as a minimum, the following:

i.  Proposed pipe material specifications.
ii. Proposed trench and bedding details, materials and specifications.

c. Provide CNLR Grading Permit application to City Engineer with grading plans.

d. Provide CNLR Stormwater Permit application to City Engineer with half size erosion control
plan
showing silt fence, storm inlet protection, and drainage details.

e. Provide CNLR Floodplain Development Permit application to City Engineer.

f.  Provide copy of Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) Stormwater Permit
to City
Engineer.



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 14 of 20

g.

h.

Provide copy of Arkansas Department of Health approval for water and sewer facilities to

NLR Planning Department if an extension of a main is required.

Prior to construction, Owner’s Architect/Engineer shall submit signed construction plans and
specifications (PDF format) to NLR Planning Department.

Prior to construction, Owner’s Architect/Engineer shall submit digital maps for all stormwater
drainage features in an ArcGIS or AutoCAD file to the City Engineer. The digital maps shall be
natively in State Plane coordinate system, Arkansas North Zone, North American Datum 1983,
units as feet; or the map must have sufficient points for georeferencing. The associated attribute
data table from the submitted file shall match the fields contained within the “SW Attribute
Data Entry Template.xIsx” as provided by City Engineering Department. All Control, Linear,
and Junction map features will be annotated by a unique identifier that will correspond to the
same unique identifier in the “SW Attribute Data Entry Template.xIsx” or GIS attribute table.
Data for each attribute column in the “SW Attributed Data Entry Template.xIsx” file shall be
chosen from the drop-down options of each cell, or chosen as “Other” (if not listed) and
described in the comments field. At the completion of the project, As-Builts of these shapefiles
in ArcGIS or AutoCAD format, along with associated attribute data table, shall be submitted to
the City Engineer.

4. Meet the requirements of the City Engineer, including:

a.

b.
c.

Prior to any excavation/street cuts within street ROW, provide CNLR Excavation Permit to
City Engineer and Barricade Plan Permit to NLR Traffic Services.

Repair or replace existing sidewalk and curb to City Engineer’s standards.

Contractor shall notify City Engineer at least (1) day prior to the construction of all stormwater
pipes and inlet structures within City ROW.

At the end of construction, Owner/Developer shall have a Professional Engineer, licensed in
the State of Arkansas, certify that all street and stormwater improvements in conjunction with
this subdivision and/or the proposed development have been inspected and constructed in
accordance with the approved plans and meet all City of North Little Rocks Standard
Specifications.

If the proposed subdivision/development is located in a FEMA designated floodplain, the first
floors of any building or house are to be a minimum of 1' above the 100-Year Base Flood
Elevation (BFE). At the completion of the project, submit Elevation Certificate to City
Engineer.

If the proposed subdivision/development is located in a FEMA designated floodplain, submit
Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F) at end of project and provide a copy of
FEMA approval to City Engineer.

5. Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:

a.
b.

Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.

Provide dumpster location. The dumpster is to have masonry screening on (3) sides along with
an opaque gate enclosure.

No fence is to be located in front of the building.

All exterior lighting shall be shielded and not encroach onto neighboring properties.



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 15 of 20

6. Meet the requirements of the Master Street Plan, including:

a.

If currently not in place, provide 5' sidewalks and ramps with a minimum of 5> green space
between sidewalk and curb to ADA standards and City standards.

7. Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:

a.

b.

All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.

Any new site development must comply with the City’s landscape and buffer ordinance
requirements.

A minimum of (4) street trees will be required.

1. Street trees are to be chosen from Section 7.5 of the North Little Rock zoning code
Trees from Table B shall be spaced every 30’ to achieve the required number of trees;
trees from Table C shall be spaced every 25°; or trees from Table D shall be used if
beneath overhead power lines and spaced every 15°.

Provide shrubs adjacent to the front of the parking bays.

i. A continuous screen of shrubs shall be required for any landscape strip adjacent to any
parking area.

ii.  Only shrubs from the approved planting list will count toward this requirement, unless
approved by the Planning Commission. Shrubs shall be 18” in height at planting and be
planted a maximum 3’ apart.

Provide a buffer/screening adjacent to the dissimilar land use to the south. The development of
the R4 property requires a half screen (as defined by Section 7.3.2) adjacent to the C1 property.

i.  Trees from Section 7.5, Table B or C shall be spaced every 20°; or trees from Table D
shall be used if beneath overhead power lines and spaced every 20°.

ii. A 6’ tall, continuous opaque screen shall be provided. An opaque screen may include
(1) of the following: wall, fence, site grading, or plantings. The opaque screen must be
opaque in all seasons.

Note turf, groundcover, or mulch (species or type) on the development plan

i.  Ground cover shall be selected from Section 7.5 of the North Little Rock zoning code.
Plant materials / turf from Table J, or mulch of shredded bark or stone shall be applied
in all landscaped areas.

Plant material shall be irrigated by an automatic underground irrigation system.

Wheel stops shall be required when parking areas abut sidewalks, landscaped areas or
pedestrian areas. No portion of a vehicle shall encroach onto a sidewalk, landscaped area or
pedestrian area.

8. Meet the following requirements concerning signage:

a.
b.
c.

All signs require a separate permit review.
Provide sign location on site plan.
All signs must comply with Article Fourteen — Sign Code.

9. Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal, including:

a.
b.

Provide an approved fire protection plan.
Meet the requirements of the 2021 Arkansas Fire Prevention Code including:
i.  An assisted living facility is a Group R-4 occupancy. (Volume 2 Section 310.5)



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 16 of 20

ii. A Group R-4, Condition 2 facility shall be equipped with an NFPA 13R fire
sprinkler system. (Volume 1 Section 903.2.8.3)
iii.  An approved fire safety and evacuation plan shall be prepared and maintained.
(Volume 1 Section 403.9.3)
10. Meet the requirements of CAW, including;:

a. All Central Arkansas Water requirements in effect at the time of request for water service must
be met.

b. The facilities on-site will be private. When meters are planned off private lines, private
facilities shall be installed to Central Arkansas Water's material and construction
specifications and installation will be inspected by an engineer, licensed to practice in the
State of Arkansas. Execution of Customer Owned Line Agreement is required.

c. Due to the nature of this facility, installation of an approved reduced pressure zone backflow
preventer assembly (RPZ) is required on the domestic water service. This assembly must be
installed prior to the first point of use. Central Arkansas Water (CAW) requires that upon
installation of the RPZA, successful tests of the assembly must be completed by a Certified
Assembly Tester licensed by the State of Arkansas and approved by CAW. The test results
must be sent to CAW's Cross Connection Section within ten days of installation and annually
thereafter. Contact the Cross Connection Section at 377-1226 if you would like to discuss
backflow prevention requirements for this project.

d. Fire sprinkler systems which do not contain additives such as antifreeze shall be isolated with
a double detector check valve assembly. If additives are used, a reduced pressure zone
backflow preventer shall be required.

11. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater, including:

a. Please submit a full set of plans to NLRW for review and approval prior to construction.
12. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.
13. Meet the requirements of Rock Region Metro.

Commissioner Wallace provided a second to the motion. By voice vote, the Commission voted
unanimously for approval (7/0/1 & 1 abstention, Charlie Foster).

14.  Rezone 2023-17 Giles Addition Lot 11R, Block 12, a Rezoning from RU to R3 to allow
a duplex @ 1218 Rockwater Blvd

Mr. Thomas Pownall was present representing the request. Chairman Clifton called the item
requesting the applicant come forward to present their request. The applicant stated the request
was to rezone the site to allow future development of a duplex.

Chairman Clifton questioned if there was anyone in the audience wishing to speak for or against the
item. Chairman Clifton questioned if there were any questions or concems of the Commissioners. There
being none, Chairman Clifton called for a roll call vote -



North Little Rock Planning Commission

Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 17 of 20
Banks Yes Belasco Absent Chambers Yes
Foster Yes Phillips Yes Pierce Yes
Wallace Yes | White Yes Clifton Yes

RZ2023-17 was approved with (8) affirmative votes, (0) no votes and (1) absent.

15.

SD2023-57 Giles Addition Lot 11R, Block 12, Replat @ 1218 Rockwater Blvd

The applicant was present representing the request. Commissioner Chambers stated the Design Review
Committee reviewed the application, the applicant was agreeable to the conditions, and the Committee
recommended approval conditioned upon:

1. Engineering requirements on detention:

a.

Option to pay the drainage in-lieu of fee of $5000/acre instead of providing onsite detention.
(OR) Provide on-site storm water detention as well as clear calculations showing detention
volume is sufficient, or demonstrate to City Engineer on-site detention is not required (based on
proposed development) by providing detention calculations showing pre and post site runoff
comparisons.

2. Engineering requirements before the plat will be signed:

a.

b.

If currently not in place, street improvements must be approved by City Engineer and accepted
by City Council.
Show and label boundary of detention area as a drainage easement if applicable.

3. Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:

a.
b.

A signed and recorded plat must be on file with the Planning Department.

Provide CNLR Stormwater Permit application to City Engineer with half size erosion control
plan

showing silt fence, storm inlet protection, and drainage details.

Provide copy of Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) Stormwater Permit
to City

Engineer.

Provide copy of Arkansas Department of Health approval for water and sewer facilities to

NLR Planning Department if an extension of a main is required.

Prior to construction, Owner’s Architect/Engineer shall submit signed construction plans and
specifications (PDF format) to NLR Planning Department.

Prior to construction, Owner’s Architect/Engineer shall submit digital maps for all stormwater
drainage features in an ArcGIS or AutoCAD file to the City Engineer. The digital maps shall be
natively in State Plane coordinate system, Arkansas North Zone, North American Datum 1983,
units as feet; or the map must have sufficient points for georeferencing. The associated attribute
data table from the submitted file shall match the fields contained within the “SW Attribute
Data Entry Template.xIsx™ as provided by City Engineering Department. All Control, Linear,
and Junction map features will be annotated by a unique identifier that will correspond to the



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 18 of 20

same unique identifier in the “SW Attribute Data Entry Template.xIsx” or GIS attribute table.
Data for each attribute column in the “SW Attributed Data Entry Template.xIsx” file shall be
chosen from the drop-down options of each cell, or chosen as “Other” (if not listed) and
described in the comments field. At the completion of the project, As-Builts of these shapefiles
in ArcGIS or AutoCAD format, along with associated attribute data table, shall be submitted to
the City Engineer.

4. Meet the requirements of the City Engineer, including:

a. Repair or replace existing sidewalk and curb to City Engineer’s standards if necessary.

b. Contractor shall notify City Engineer at least 1 day prior to the construction of all stormwater
pipes and inlet structures within City ROW.

c. At the end of construction, Owner/Developer shall have a Professional Engineer, licensed in
the State of Arkansas, certify that all street and stormwater improvements in conjunction with
this subdivision and/or the proposed development have been inspected and constructed in
accordance with the approved plans and meet all City of North Little Rocks Standard
Specifications.

5. Planning requirements before the plat will be signed:

a. Plat will be submitted to NLR Planning Department in CAD compatible DXF and/or DWG
format, tied to Arkansas State Plane Coordinates.

b. Provide street trees or provide a bond.

6. Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:
a. Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.
7. Meet the requirements of the Master Street Plan, including:
a. If currently not in place, provide 5' sidewalks and ramps with a minimum of 5° green space
between sidewalk and curb to ADA standards and City standards.
8. Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including;
a. All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.
9. Meet the following requirements concerning signage:
a. All signs require a permit and separate review.
10. Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal, including:
a. Meet the requirements of the 2021 Arkansas Fire Prevention Code including:
i.  Every sleeping room will have a wired smoke alarm inside and outside the room and
one on every level. (Volume 2 Section 907.2.11.2)
ii.  The alarms in a dwelling shall be interconnected. (Volume 2 Section 907.2.11.5)
iii.  Atleast one alarm in each dwelling shall also function as a Carbon Monoxide
alarm. (Volume 2 Section 915.1.5)
11. Meet the requirements of CAW, including:

a. NO OBJECTIONS; All Central Arkansas Water requirements in effect at the time of request
for water service must be met.

12. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater, including:

a. No service connections will be permitted on the 18” sewer mains to the south or west of
this parcel. (See attached map)



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 19 of 20

b. Please add a 15” exclusive sanitary sewer easement for the existing 8” public sanitary sewer
main that crosses the northern portion of the property.
c. Please submit a full set of plans to NLRW for review and approval prior to construction.
13. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.
14. Meet the requirements of Rock Region Metro (CATA).

Commissioner Wallace provided a second to the motion. By voice vote, the Commission voted
unanimously for approval (8/0/1).

18. SD2023-59 Argenta Addition Lot 1-6, Blk 22, SPR to allow a solar carport structure @
204 E 4% St

The applicant was present representing the request. Commissioner Chambers stated the Design Review
Committee reviewed the application, the applicant was agreeable to the conditions, and the Committee
recommended approval conditioned upon:

1. Prior to the issuance of a building permit a replat of the existing lots must be recorded creating a
single lot for the property.
2. Engineering requirements on detention:
a. Stormwater detention plan not required as there is no increase of or a reduction of impervious
surface.
3. Engineering requirements before the plat will be signed
a. If not existing, provide 2 street improvements (street, drainage, curb and gutter, sidewalk,
streetlights) or a performance bond.
b. Street improvements must be approved by City Engineer and accepted by City Council.
c. Provide property line corner radius.
4. Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:
a. A signed and recorded plat must be on file with the Planning Department.
b. Prior to construction, Owner’s Architect/Engineer shall submit signed construction plans and
specifications (PDF format) to NLR Planning Department.
5. Meet the requirements of the City Engineer, including:
a. Prior to any excavation/street cuts within street ROW, provide CNLR Excavation Permit to
City Engineer and Barricade Plan Permit to NLR Traffic Services.
b. Repair or replace existing sidewalk and curb to City Engineer’s standards.
6. Planning requirements before the plat will be signed:
a. Plat will be submitted to NLR Planning Department in CAD compatible DXF and/or DWG
format, tied to Arkansas State Plane Coordinates.
7. Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:
a. Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.
8. Meet the requirements of the Master Street Plan, including:



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Minute Summary

September 12, 2023

Page 20 0of 20

a. Ifnot existing, provide 5' sidewalks and ramps with a minimum of 5” green space between
sidewalk and curb to ADA standards and City standards.
9. Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance.
10. Meet the following requirements concerning signage:
a. All signs require a permit and separate review.
11. Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal.
12. Meet the requirements of CAW
a. NO OBJECTIONS; All Central Arkansas Water requirements in effect at the time of request
for water service must be met.
13. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater, including:
a. The drawing does not correctly depict the existing sanitary sewer facilities in N. Poplar Street
and should be corrected to avoid confusion in the future. (See attached map)
14. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.
15. Meet the requirements of Rock Region Metro.

Commissioner Wallace provided a second to the motion. By voice vote, the Commission voted
unanimously for approval (8/0/1).

Public Comments/Adjournment:

Chairman Clifton called for public comment. There being no further business before the Commission,
and on a motion by Commissioner Foster and seconded by Commissioner Wallace, and by consent of
all members present (8/0/1), the meeting was adjourned at 5:30 pm. The next regularly scheduled
Commission meeting is to be-held on Tuesday, October 10, 2023, at 4:00 pm in the City Council
Chambers of City Hall, 300 Main Street, NLR, AR.

Respectfully Submitted:
Donna James, AICP
Assistant Director of Planning



Item #1
Special Use 2023-26

Request: a Special Use to allow a Type 2 Short-term Rental in an R1 zone

Location of the Request: @ 105 Wisteria Dr, NLR, AR

Applicant/Owner: Pitts Property Rentals, LLC

P.C. Background: 1% time on the agenda

P.C. Background: Ordinance #9559 Adopted by the NLR City Council on April 10, 2023,
established the Comprehensive Code to Regulate Issuance of, and Conditions Associated with, Short-
Term Residential Rental Business Licenses. The applicant is seeking approval to allow a Type 2
(non-owner occupied) Short-Term Rental in a R1 zoning district. The applicant did not have a
business license prior to the city issuing a moratorium on business license for Short-term rentals but
the applicant has documentation the unit was listed on a hosting platform prior to the adoption of the
ordinance regulating Short-term Rentals.

Master Street Plan; Coronado Circle is classified as a local street on the Master Street Plan. There

are no dedicated bikeways located in the area.

Surrounding Zoning and Uses

Direction Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Uses
North R1 Single Family
South R1 Single Family

East R2 Church

West R1 Single Family

Background:

1.

Compatible with previous actions? A Special Use is the process established by City Council for
consideration of Type 1 Short-term Rentals within R1 zoning districts, which were operational
prior to April 10, 2023.

Neighborhood Position/Comment? Staff has numerous calls with questions regarding the
proposed Special Use. Some of the callers have indicated support and others opposition to the
request.

Effect on public service and utilities? There should be minimal impact on public services and
utilities.

Legal Consideration/Reasonableness? The request is reasonable.

Will the approval have a stabilizing effect on surrounding properties? Short-term rentals are
similar to hotel/motels with a transient population, which could potentially have a negative impact
on the neighborhood.



Item #1
Special Use 2023-26
Page 2 of 3

6. Is the site of adequate size for the development? The site is developed with a single family
home. There is an existing concrete driveway located within the front yard allowing sufficient
on-site parking.

7. Will this set a precedent for future rezoning? A Special Use is required for Short-term Rentals
in residentially zoned areas.

8. Should a different zoning classification be requested? No, a Special Use is the appropriate
request.

Summary:

The applicant is seeking a Special Use to allow a Type 2, (non-owner occupied) Short-term Rental
unit in a R1 zoning district. The recently adopted ordinance by City Council established the criteria
for applying for a Short-term Rental. The applicant did not have a business license prior to the City
placing a moratorium on Short-term rentals. The applicant has provided documentation the Short-
term Rental was in use prior to the adoption of the Short-term Rental Ordinance by the City of North
Little Rock by providing a backdated listing and a copy of rental reviews prior to April 10, 2023. The
applicant has provided a site plan, including the area of on-site parking. This request is to recognize
the unit as non-conforming.

Design Review Committee and Design Review Committee Recommendation: The applicant met
with the Design Review Committee on September 20, 2023.

Conditions to Consider:

1. Approval of the Special Use does not ensure approval of a Business License. The applicant must
comply with all other applicable requirements within the Comprehensive Code to Regulate
Issuance of, and Conditions Associated with, Short-Term Residential Rental Business Licenses
(Ordinance #9559 Adopted by the NLR City Council on April 10, 2023)

2. Per §8.2.3(d), Revocation and Limitations, Time Limitations, a Business License must be
obtained within (1) year of Special Use approval.

3. The owner or owner representative for all short-term residential rentals shall post in a prominent
common area or near the front door within the short-term rental:

the physical street address assigned by the City;

owner or owner representative name and telephone number;

local contact person name and telephone number;

telephone numbers for the North Little Rock Police Department, the North Little Rock

FireDepartment, and North Little Rock Code Enforcement;

the phone number to report a safety complaint;

solid waste (trash) pick-up day;

the maximum occupancy limits as approved by the business license;

the maximum number of parking spaces available on-site;

a copy of the Good Neighbor Brochure; and,

notification that a guest, local contact person, responsible person, or owner may be

cited and/or fined by the City in accordance with this Ordinance.

o o

TorE@ o



Item #1
Special Use 2023-26

Page 3 of 3

4. The number of occupants is limited to a maximum of (2) people per bedroom, plus (2), for the
entire unit when the property is operated as a Short-Term Rental.

5. Commercial functions and other similar events are prohibited at the transient use site.

6. Special events including, but not limited to, weddings, receptions, anniversaries, private parties,
fundraisers and business seminars are prohibited from occurring at the transient use site.

7. No recreational vehicle, trailer, other vehicle or structure not classified as a permanent
residential dwelling may be used as a Short-Term Rental.

8. The minimum number of off-street parking spaces required for motor vehicles of overnight
guests at the transient use site shall comply with the applicable residential requirements set
forth in the NLR Zoning Ordinance.

9. Signage advertising the unit as a Short-Term Rental is not permitted

10. The addition of any outdoor recreational activities must be reviewed by staff prior to installing.



Special Use #2023-26

e WISTERIADR e — =S e SRR »

% m 1 inch = 30 feet
0] 60 Feet

Date: 9/14/2023 Not an actual survey




Special Use

#2023-26

&

‘| To aliow a type 2 short-term

Special Use 2023-26

105 Wisteria Dr.

rental in an R1 zone.

-~
QUL
£ ; S

Zoning)Map)

Date: 9/14/2023

1 inch = 100 feet

CAMP/ROBINSONIRD

CAMP; ROBINSON|RD

R2

R2

T .-‘4-‘_

50

100

1
200 Feet

Not an actual survey




NOU-16-2006 15:85 DONALD W BROOKS SURVEYING ‘ 581 888 53gg P.02./82
PVUNALL W, BRUOKS, INC.

E.S. (Stnn) Cunnlngham, .:,l‘, (RLS#1 a75) Doneld W. Brooks (RLS#S) T'mﬂthy C. Cola (RLS#1:
20820 ARCH STREET PIKE
HENSLEY, AR 72065
PHONE (501) B86-5338

e  ve—T V- S _Ferce Corrier
I-ﬂ:ﬁ..—:}f A 5'Edgement ﬁil_k -

|

¥
{

|
—— _g ‘ 1} Q.'?I'

'fz_e-faafdg Cine

-
&
e

o

S
) g C ; 5" A
ﬁ{vPbFn I =J ; @ Q!_X's
- L NS N

il “‘i .

’. N
l AC_DﬂQ

v

NléTE\ﬂ-ﬁA DILINE 5o (w

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Lot 23, MEADOWLANE ADDITION to the City of North Little Roek, Pulaski
County, Arkansas.

This property is not in the 100 year flood plain as per Panel 4 for North
Little Rock, AR. Community-Panel #050189 0004 D, dated September 5,
1990 in Zone X,



Item #2
Special Use 2023-33

Request: a Special Use to allow the continuation of a Short-term Rental in an R1 zone

Location of the Request: @ 5006 Lockridge Rd, NLR, AR

Applicant/Owner: Karen Hall-Fore, LKJ Inc.

P.C. Background: 1% time on the agenda

P.C. Background: Ordinance #9559 Adopted by the NLR City Council on April 10, 2023,

established the Comprehensive Code to Regulate Issuance of, and Conditions Associated with, Short-
Term Residential Rental Business Licenses. The applicant is seeking approval to allow a Type 2
(non-owner occupied) Short-Term Rental in a R1 zoning district. The applicant did not have a
business license prior to the city issuing a moratorium on business license for Short-term rentals but
the applicant has documentation the unit was listed on a hosting platform prior to the adoption of the
ordinance regulating Short-term Rentals.

Master Street Plan: Lockridge Road is classified as a local street on the Master Street Plan. There

are no dedicated bikeways located in the area.

Surrounding Zoning and Uses

Direction | Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Uses
North R1 Single Family
South R1 Single Family
East R1 Single Family
West R1 Single Family

Background:

1.

Compatible with previous actions? A Special Use is the process established by City Council for
consideration of Type 2 Short-term Rentals within R1 zoning districts, which were operational
prior to April 10, 2023.

Neighborhood Position/Comment? Staff has numerous calls with questions regarding the
proposed Special Use. Some of the callers have indicated support and others opposition to the
request.

Effect on public service and utilities? There should be minimal impact on public services and
utilities.

Legal Consideration/Reasonableness? The request is reasonable.

Will the approval have a stabilizing effect on surrounding properties? Short-term rentals are
similar to hotel/motels with a transient population, which could potentially have a negative impact
on the neighborhood.



Item #2
Special Use 2023-33
Page 2 of 3

6. Is the site of adequate size for the development? The site is developed with a single family
home. There is an existing concrete driveway located within the front yard allowing sufficient
on-site parking.

7. Will this set a precedent for future rezoning? A Special Use is required for Short-term Rentals
in residentially zoned areas.

8. Should a different zoning classification be requested? No, a Special Use is the appropriate
request.

Summary:

The applicant is seeking a Special Use to allow a Type 2, (non-owner occupied) Short-term Rental
unit in a R1 zoning district. The recently adopted ordinance by City Council established the criteria
for applying for a Short-term Rental. The applicant did not have a business license prior to the City
placing a moratorium on Short-term rentals. The applicant has provided documentation the Short-
term Rental was in use prior to the adoption of the Short-term Rental Ordinance by the City of North
Little Rock by providing a backdated listing and a copy of rental reviews prior to April 10, 2023. The
applicant has provided a site plan, including the area of on-site parking. This request is to recognize
the unit as non-conforming.

Design Review Committee and Design Review Committee Recommendation: The applicant met
with the Design Review Committee on September 20, 2023.

Conditions to Consider:

1. Approval of the Special Use does not ensure approval of a Business License. The applicant must
comply with all other applicable requirements within the Comprehensive Code to Regulate
Issuance of, and Conditions Associated with, Short-Term Residential Rental Business Licenses
(Ordinance #9559 Adopted by the NLR City Council on April 10, 2023)

2. Per §8.2.3(d), Revocation and Limitations, Time Limitations, a Business License must be
obtained within (1) year of Special Use approval.

3. The owner or owner representative for all short-term residential rentals shall post in a prominent
common area or near the front door within the short-term rental:

the physical street address assigned by the City;

owner or owner representative name and telephone number;

local contact person name and telephone number;

telephone numbers for the North Little Rock Police Department, the North Little Rock

FireDepartment, and North Little Rock Code Enforcement;

the phone number to report a safety complaint;

solid waste (trash) pick-up day;

the maximum occupancy limits as approved by the business license;

the maximum number of parking spaces available on-site;

a copy of the Good Neighbor Brochure; and,

notification that a guest, local contact person, responsible person, or owner may be

cited and/or fined by the City in accordance with this Ordinance.

e o

Cr R rh o



Item #2
Special Use 2023-33
Page 3 of 3

hd

9.

The number of occupants is limited to a maximum of (2) people per bedroom, plus (2), for the
entire unit when the property is operated as a Short-Term Rental.

Commercial functions and other similar events are prohibited at the transient use site.

Special events including, but not limited to, weddings, receptions, anniversaries, private parties,
fundraisers and business seminars are prohibited from occurring at the transient use site.

No recreational vehicle, trailer, other vehicle or structure not classified as a permanent
residential dwelling may be used as a Short-Term Rental.

The minimum number of off-street parking spaces required for motor vehicles of overnight
guests at the transient use site shall comply with the applicable residential requirements set
forth in the NLR Zoning Ordinance.

Signage advertising the unit as a Short-Term Rental is not permitted

10. The addition of any outdoor recreational activities must be reviewed by staff prior to installing.



3
&
3
3
5
mﬂ
»

30 feet

1 inch

Not an actual survey

Date: 9/14/2023




Special Use #2023-33

5006 Lockridge Rd.

To allow the continuation of a
short-term rental in an R1 zone.

1 inch = 100 feet
4D
T I T ]

0 50 100 200 Feet
Date: 9/14/2023 Not an actual survey




Building Sketch (Page - 1)

| Borrower LKH INC -
Property Address 5006 Lochridge Rd -
City North Little Rock - Cn_um_y B State AR Zip Code 72116

Lender/Client Karen Hall

90°
16" 4"
Storage
© Shed @«
{130.67 Sq ft]
16" 4"
14'
]
1
i
" 16
i
¥ Patio E = :
2 B 15
¥ o ¥
- b 7 2y 16 A
Bath
51= 52‘“ £ Bedroom1 E
7 |41] &
Hall w  [uwe
8 4" 13° 3" 3’ 5'_'“6' 5
] L[5 L
~N ol = 4
N | carge B2 -
' E " Living ¥ | Bedrooms tn | Bedroom2 | 1
™ n
] b
- I 23 L S
b o 9 76 i
-] [ 9 B
Driveway
[620.5 5q ft] h
i
90"

TOTAL Sketch by & 1 mode

T MR
Form SKT.BLDSKI - “TOTAL® appraisal software by a ta mode, inc. - 1-800-ALAMODE o b somiverify



Item #3
Special Use 2023-34

Request: a Special Use to allow the continuation of a Short-term Rental in an R1 zone

Location of the Request: @ 6705 Pontiac Dr, NLR, AR

Applicant/Owner: Karen Hall-Fore, LKJ Inc.

P.C. Background: 1 time on the agenda

P.C. Background: Ordinance #9559 Adopted by the NLR City Council on April 10, 2023,

established the Comprehensive Code to Regulate Issuance of, and Conditions Associated with, Short-
Term Residential Rental Business Licenses. The applicant is seeking approval to allow a Type 2
(non-owner occupied) Short-Term Rental in a R1 zoning district. The applicant did not have a
business license prior to the city issuing a moratorium on business license for Short-term rentals but
the applicant has documentation the unit was listed on a hosting platform prior to the adoption of the
ordinance regulating Short-term Rentals.

Master Street Plan: Pontiac Drive is classified as a local street on the Master Street Plan. There are

no dedicated bikeways located in the area.

Surrounding Zoning and Uses

Direction | Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Uses
North R1 Single Family
South R1 Single Family
East R1 Single Family
West R1 Single Family

Background:

1.

v

Compatible with previous actions? A Special Use is the process established by City Council for
consideration of Type 2 Short-term Rentals within R1 zoning districts, which were operational
prior to April 10, 2023.

Neighborhood Position/Comment? Staff has numerous calls with questions regarding the
proposed Special Use. Some of the callers have indicated support and others opposition to the
request.

Effect on public service and utilities? There should be minimal impact on public services and
utilities.

Legal Consideration/Reasonableness? The request is reasonable.

Will the approval have a stabilizing effect on surrounding properties? Short-term rentals are
similar to hotel/motels with a transient population, which could potentially have a negative impact
on the neighborhood.



Item #3
Special Use 2023-34
Page 2 of 3

6. Is the site of adequate size for the development? The site is developed with a single family
home. There is an existing concrete driveway located within the front yard allowing sufficient
on-site parking.

7. Will this set a precedent for future rezoning? A Special Use is required for Short-term Rentals
in residentially zoned areas.

8. Should a different zoning classification be requested? No, a Special Use is the appropriate
request.

Summary:

The applicant is seeking a Special Use to allow a Type 2, (non-owner occupied) Short-term Rental
unit in a R1 zoning district. The recently adopted ordinance by City Council established the criteria
for applying for a Short-term Rental. The applicant did not have a business license prior to the City
placing a moratorium on Short-term rentals. The applicant has provided documentation the Short-
term Rental was in use prior to the adoption of the Short-term Rental Ordinance by the City of North
Little Rock by providing a backdated listing and a copy of rental reviews prior to April 10, 2023. The
applicant has provided a site plan, including the area of on-site parking. This request is to recognize
the unit as non-conforming.

Design Review Committee and Design Review Committee Recommendation: The applicant met
with the Design Review Committee on September 20, 2023.

Conditions to Consider:

1. Approval of the Special Use does not ensure approval of a Business License. The applicant must
comply with all other applicable requirements within the Comprehensive Code to Regulate
Issuance of, and Conditions Associated with, Short-Term Residential Rental Business Licenses
(Ordinance #9559 Adopted by the NLR City Council on April 10, 2023)

2. Per §8.2.3(d), Revocation and Limitations, Time Limitations, a Business License must be
obtained within (1) year of Special Use approval.

3. The owner or owner representative for all short-term residential rentals shall post in a prominent
common area or near the front door within the short-term rental:

the physical street address assigned by the City;

owner or owner representative name and telephone number;

local contact person name and telephone number;

telephone numbers for the North Little Rock Police Department, the North Little Rock

FireDepartment, and North Little Rock Code Enforcement;

the phone number to report a safety complaint;

solid waste (trash) pick-up day; ,

the maximum occupancy limits as approved by the business license;

the maximum number of parking spaces available on-site;

a copy of the Good Neighbor Brochure; and,

notification that a guest, local contact person, responsible person, or owner may be

cited and/or fined by the City in accordance with this Ordinance.

/Ro o

@ o



Item #3
Special Use 2023-34

Page 3 of 3

4. The number of occupants is limited to a maximum of (2) people per bedroom, plus (2), for the
entire unit when the property is operated as a Short-Term Rental.

5. Commercial functions and other similar events are prohibited at the transient use site.

6. Special events including, but not limited to, weddings, receptions, anniversaries, private parties,
fundraisers and business seminars are prohibited from occurring at the transient use site.

7. No recreational vehicle, trailer, other vehicle or structure not classified as a permanent
residential dwelling may be used as a Short-Term Rental.

8. The minimum number of off-street parking spaces required for motor vehicles of overnight
guests at the transient use site shall comply with the applicable residential requirements set
forth in the NLR Zoning Ordinance.

9. Signage advertising the unit as a Short-Term Rental is not permitted

10. The addition of any outdoor recreational activities must be reviewed by staff prior to installing.



1 inch = 30 feet

0 15 30
Date: 9/14/2023 Not an actual survey




| Special Use 2023-34

6705 Pontiac Dr.

To allow the continuation of a
short-term rental in an R1 zone.

Date: 9/14/2023

1 inch = 100 feet

50 100

1
200 Feet

Not an actual survey




Bullding Sketch (Page - 1)

Bormower LKHING - ]
Property Address 6705 Pontiac Dr R
Chy North Little Rock - County Sttt AR ZipCode 72116
Lender/Chent Karen Hall
1016
B
i 10 &3
2
Z) shed®iz |4
1160 Saq f] "
1]
&
i eF
&
2] LOWER LEVEL
e 186
i Yl |2
= b fmh Ia
g 4 I gl
N = i
L Wood Deck 5 nl
2 65Sam) . n
T
APTE s's':l PR T Y g100 & P
!-: tamdry | 1 st | N EE 4
T r3 5-7; Kitchen ; 2 } Ml“” by
T
o I 53
L b g ﬁ T & [
] Garage B
- e |3
Dining 2 ik 5 %
0 i % Bedwom N °""2°°' 4
¥ . | o 16300 7| 3 £
351" 151 175
g 8
: R
D 0157
TTAL Sketch by 2 12 mode
T OMEL
Serlal# 3133671A

Form SKT.BLDSKI - "TOTAL" appraisal software by a la mode, inc. - 1-800-ALAMODE

esign.alamode.comiverify




Item #4
Special Use 2023-36

Request: a Special Use to allow the continuation of a Type 2 Short-term Rental in an R2 zone

Location of the Request: @ 7 Longview Rd, NLR, AR

Applicant/Owner: Hattie Tyler

P.C. Background: 1* time on the agenda

P.C. Background: Ordinance #9559 Adopted by the NLR City Council on April 10, 2023,

established the Comprehensive Code to Regulate Issuance of, and Conditions Associated with, Short-
Term Residential Rental Business Licenses. The applicant is seeking approval to allow a Type 2
(non-owner occupied) Short-Term Rental in a R2 zoning district. The applicant did not have a
business license prior to the city issuing a moratorium on business license for Short-term rentals but
the applicant has documentation the unit was listed on a hosting platform prior to the adoption of the
ordinance regulating Short-term Rentals.

Master Street Plan: Longview Road is classified as a local street on the Master Street Plan. There

are no dedicated bikeways located in the area.

Surrounding Zoning and Uses

Direction | Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Uses
North R2 Single Family
South R2 Single Family
East R2 Single Family
West R2 Single Family

Background:

1.

e

Compatible with previous actions? A Special Use is the process established by City Council for
consideration of Type 2 Short-term Rentals within R2 zoning districts, which were operational
prior to April 10, 2023.

Neighborhood Position/Comment? Staff has numerous calls with questions regarding the
proposed Special Use. Some of the callers have indicated support and others opposition to the
request.

Effect on public service and utilities? There should be minimal impact on public services and
utilities.

Legal Consideration/Reasonableness? The request is reasonable.

Will the approval have a stabilizing effect on surrounding properties? Short-term rentals are
similar to hotel/motels with a transient population, which could potentially have a negative impact
on the neighborhood.



Item #4
Special Use 2023-36
Page 2 of 3

6. Is the site of adequate size for the development? The site is developed with a single family
home. There is an existing concrete driveway located within the front yard allowing sufficient
on-site parking.

7. Will this set a precedent for future rezoning? A Special Use is required for Short-term Rentals
in residentially zoned areas.

8. Should a different zoning classification be requested? No, a Special Use is the appropriate
request.

Summary:

The applicant is seeking a Special Use to allow a Type 2, (non-owner occupied) Short-term Rental
unit in a R2 zoning district. The recently adopted ordinance by City Council established the criteria
for applying for a Short-term Rental. The applicant did not have a business license prior to the City
placing a moratorium on Short-term rentals. The applicant has provided documentation the Short-
term Rental was in use prior to the adoption of the Short-term Rental Ordinance by the City of North
Little Rock by providing a backdated listing and a copy of rental reviews prior to April 10, 2023. The
applicant has provided a site plan, including the area of on-site parking. This request is to recognize
the unit as non-conforming.

Design Review Committee and Design Review Committee Recommendation: The applicant met
with the Design Review Committee on September 20, 2023.

Conditions to Consider:

1. Approval of the Special Use does not ensure approval of a Business License. The applicant must
comply with all other applicable requirements within the Comprehensive Code to Regulate
Issuance of, and Conditions Associated with, Short-Term Residential Rental Business Licenses
(Ordinance #9559 Adopted by the NLR City Council on April 10, 2023)

2. Per §8.2.3(d), Revocation and Limitations, Time Limitations, a Business License must be
obtained within (1) year of Special Use approval.

3. The owner or owner representative for all short-term residential rentals shall post in a prominent
common area or near the front door within the short-term rental:

the physical street address assigned by the City;

owner or owner representative name and telephone number;

local contact person name and telephone number;

telephone numbers for the North Little Rock Police Department, the North Little Rock

FireDepartment, and North Little Rock Code Enforcement;

the phone number to report a safety complaint;

solid waste (trash) pick-up day;

the maximum occupancy limits as approved by the business license;

the maximum number of parking spaces available on-site;

a copy of the Good Neighbor Brochure; and,

notification that a guest, local contact person, responsible person, or owner may be

cited and/or fined by the City in accordance with this Ordinance.

SR

SR pE o



Item #4
Special Use 2023-36

Page 3 of 3

4. The number of occupants is limited to a maximum of (2) people per bedroom, plus (2), for the
entire unit when the property is operated as a Short-Term Rental.

5. Commercial functions and other similar events are prohibited at the transient use site.

6. Special events including, but not limited to, weddings, receptions, anniversaries, private parties,
fundraisers and business seminars are prohibited from occurring at the transient use site.

7. No recreational vehicle, trailer, other vehicle or structure not classified as a permanent
residential dwelling may be used as a Short-Term Rental.

8. The minimum number of off-street parking spaces required for motor vehicles of overnight
guests at the transient use site shall comply with the applicable residential requirements set
forth in the NLR Zoning Ordinance.

9. Signage advertising the unit as a Short-Term Rental is not permitted

10. The addition of any outdoor recreational activities must be reviewed by staff prior to installing.



©
%
¥
S
-
m.
&

30 feet

1inch

Community Planning

Not an actual survey

Date: 9/14/2023




Special Use #2023-36

7

Special Use 2023-36
7 Longview Rd.

To allow the continuation of a type-2
short-term rental in an R2 zone.

Date: 9/14/2023

1 inch = 100 feet

! | ! |
50 100 200 Feet

Not an actual survey




BROOKS SURVEYING, INC,

_/N\_ 20820 Arch Street Pike
— Hensley, AR 72065 o i,
501-888-5336/brookssu n e OF A
< G pC
: % &
? ‘,;6'0' wiss £=G5.0' Us G4.GS" e S ook
t R » £ e - H -
0 9 jL of 28" o : Ggg‘msmc.mc
”‘_ -D# o i’ Qa 2 .'0. oh 133 5
i T |~ 61, ""ﬂ-..“
b4 Yy “ [&48:‘ ;
F ’g g" "’“lnu m\““
] £>
) ' £ .‘ﬂ"
Sl 3
o ~ Q
h7; Z
- g I L1 <
f‘; b w | P 204 ¥ O
] 0 =1 . -IL 2| Gerlavel L
) Ry >
) ~ § . A8 20 S S
3 S w [ S 3 |71 "
—~ m ~ i . o ' '.* g; 3
< 9 T [ ¥ i -
I » - W
S ] g—-—-—- - g <
o A TR (=
i & S]] O
B A 1] 74’ L Z
: <y 3] o
4] & «J
%4
: 5
Fo ol 1 )
ol | "ol | N )
!.{?Em_ L URE o, 3 3
Dxi8.0' s 14776/ «
af e
S
mf‘& = i
TS e ] sl weumsr B

l‘



Item #5
Special Use 2023-38

Request: a Special Use to allow the continuation of a Type 2 Short-term Rental in an R1 zone

Location of the Request: @ 4900 Hickory Ave, NLR, AR

Applicant/Owner: Jason Newton

P.C. Background: 1* time on the agenda

P.C. Background: Ordinance #9559 Adopted by the NLR City Council on April 10, 2023,
established the Comprehensive Code to Regulate Issuance of, and Conditions Associated with, Short-
Term Residential Rental Business Licenses. The applicant is seeking approval to allow a Type 2
(non-owner occupied) Short-Term Rental in a R1 zoning district. The applicant did not have a
business license prior to the city issuing a moratorium on business license for Short-term rentals but
the applicant has documentation the unit was listed on a hosting platform prior to the adoption of the
ordinance regulating Short-term Rentals.

Master Street Plan: The property is located on the northeast corner of Hickory and McCain Blvd.
Hickory is a local street on the Master Street Plan. McCain Blvd is classified as a minor arterial on
the Master Street Plan. There are no dedicated bikeways located in the area.

Surrounding Zoning and Uses

Direction Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Uses
North R1 Vacant Residential Lot
South NA McCain Blvd ROW
East R1 Single Family

West R4 Multi-family

Background:

1. Compatible with previous actions? A Special Use is the process established by City Council for
consideration of Type 2 Short-term Rentals within R1 zoning districts, which were operational
prior to April 10, 2023.

2. Neighborhood Position/Comment? Staff has numerous calls with questions regarding the
proposed Special Use. Some of the callers have indicated support and others opposition to the
request.

3. Effect on public service and utilities? There should be minimal impact on public services and

utilities.

Legal Consideration/Reasonableness? The request is reasonable.

Will the approval have a stabilizing effect on surrounding properties? Short-term rentals are

similar to hotel/motels with a transient population, which could potentially have a negative impact

on the neighborhood.

N



Item #5
Special Use 2023-38
Page 2 of 3

6. Is the site of adequate size for the development? The site is developed with a single family
home. There is an existing concrete driveway located within the front yard allowing sufficient
on-site parking.

7. Will this set a precedent for future rezoning? A Special Use is required for Short-term Rentals
in residentially zoned areas.

8. Should a different zoning classification be requested? No, a Special Use is the appropriate
request.

Summary:

The applicant is seeking a Special Use to allow a Type 2, (non-owner occupied) Short-term Rental
unit in a R1 zoning district. The recently adopted ordinance by City Council established the criteria
for applying for a Short-term Rental. The applicant did not have a business license prior to the City
placing a moratorium on Short-term rentals. The applicant has provided documentation the Short-
term Rental was in use prior to the adoption of the Short-term Rental Ordinance by the City of North
Little Rock by providing a backdated listing and a copy of rental reviews prior to April 10, 2023. The
applicant has provided a site plan, including the area of on-site parking. This request is to recognize
the unit as non-conforming.

Design Review Committee and Design Review Committee Recommendation: The applicant met
with the Design Review Committee on September 20, 2023.

Conditions to Consider:

1. Approval of the Special Use does not ensure approval of a Business License. The applicant must
comply with all other applicable requirements within the Comprehensive Code to Regulate
Issuance of, and Conditions Associated with, Short-Term Residential Rental Business Licenses
(Ordinance #9559 Adopted by the NLR City Council on April 10, 2023)

2. Per §8.2.3(d), Revocation and Limitations, Time Limitations, a Business License must be
obtained within (1) year of Special Use approval.

3. The owner or owner representative for all short-term residential rentals shall post in a prominent
common area or near the front door within the short-term rental:

the physical street address assigned by the City;

owner or owner representative name and telephone number;

local contact person name and telephone number;

telephone numbers for the North Little Rock Police Department, the North Little Rock

FireDepartment, and North Little Rock Code Enforcement;

the phone number to report a safety complaint;

solid waste (trash) pick-up day;

the maximum occupancy limits as approved by the business license;

the maximum number of parking spaces available on-site;

a copy of the Good Neighbor Brochure; and,

notification that a guest, local contact person, responsible person, or owner may be

cited and/or fined by the City in accordance with this Ordinance.

0o

Trrp@ e



Item #5

Special Use 2023-38

Page 3 of 3

4. The number of occupants is limited to a maximum of (2) people per bedroom, plus (2), for the
entire unit when the property is operated as a Short-Term Rental.

5. Commercial functions and other similar events are prohibited at the transient use site.

6. Special events including, but not limited to, weddings, receptions, anniversaries, private parties,
fundraisers and business seminars are prohibited from occurring at the transient use site.

7. No recreational vehicle, trailer, other vehicle or structure not classified as a permanent
residential dwelling may be used as a Short-Term Rental.

8. The minimum number of off-street parking spaces required for motor vehicles of overnight
guests at the transient use site shall comply with the applicable residential requirements set
forth in the NLR Zoning Ordinance.

9. Signage advertising the unit as a Short-Term Rental is not permitted

10. The addition of any outdoor recreational activities must be reviewed by staff prior to installing.



% m 1 inch = 30 feet
0 15 30 60 Feet

Date: 9/14/2023 Not an actual survey




2

Special Use #2023-38

| Special Use 2023-38

4900 Hickory Ave. »

is
To allow the continuation of a type-2
short-term rental in an R1 zone.

mm 1 inch = 100 feet %
W E
LI 1 ¥ 1 S
0 50 100 200 Feet

Date: 9/14/2023 Not an actual survey




\\“ v“\.._ \{.NA »

- ...vu,@..wﬁ»a.. fwn pels

5t-rea-105
SEST9Ep- 105
SAZTL e oy s
Mg evesor spp
" WESurany g, gy
b .-i!.i._i‘.....sug

§§!=gl8
. T
.
™ o
il .- .
23 Do oo
VIO 30 LYSNGD

e 2 | Liguma Jupenans = oAb
e k] AR " .
T - T N z
[I|||||I|-|||-.-a...!uﬁan‘-v —_— "I R fLOGD)
il tost oLl A |
O/ P prorcory serey .
S0 pedq o} |
P 0 0 ey S (v}
DIS00 IA8 AT e ABITS By ) _

HOLYIID M ooy
R \ N
N /.4.1 N, /
£Rr528 #ieq WioZ Yoy @ N N
e riene Ireeg Leuta g "
- g0ty o P ; Tt :
i ; . o _
hl.. mm)eiag. % 30 n. 4 - A N, .hw. |
- r., B \ MMJ
. - M . vv‘w /// .
- fal, Sz~ 3 " 1)
ONRETINON3 10 31 v sty . E R ?/, " m
u-..-.._._:ﬁ\s.u:ze ‘awe wnipuy c o ,.v;s\t .
wilulhe )& ; 2
e 2
w E\,. W
; o
’
— £z
b AN E) g%
S 7
!isil-snung m
- 3
g |
= !
5
® }
— v, '
. [ o ]
o T =i
e T W N T e
DHIUOOTY 40 SLY ALY —
” 301 Pt W’ \.
“SeSUBY "0 yseing g3y apr quay oA e w /
O1 UORIPPY i ed ‘007 9019 ‘agg pue ¥RY 51070 eydas N
€ 3uq ‘uonippy 1K peg ‘0z 0ig ‘4889, pue yvgg, 107 I ——
! ) 10 oy - RO
NOUANDS3a Vo3 ‘ T
oy
L)




Item #6
Conditional Use 2023-12

Request: a Conditional Use to allow auto sales in a C4 zone
Location of the Request: @ 4620 MacArthur Dr, NLR, AR

Applicant/Owner: Car World Inc.

P.C. Background: 1% time on the agenda

Site Characteristics: The site has a history of automobile sales. There was not a Conditional Use
previously approved for auto sales and there has not been a business license issued by the City Clerk’s
office within the last 12-months to maintain any non-conforming status for automobile sales.

Master Street Plan: MacArthur Drive is classified on the Master Street Plan as a minor arterial and
is a State Highway (AR - HWY 365). MacArthur Drive is a two-lane road with a continuous center
turn lane. There is no curb, gutter or sidewalk in place along the property frontage. There are no
dedicated bikeways located in the area. The site has a 6-foot chain link fence along the MacArthur
Road frontage.

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning

Direction | Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Uses
North R3 Residential

South C4 Office Warehouse
East R3 Residential

West C4 Undeveloped

Background:

1. Compatible with previous actions? There are a number of automobile sales lots located
along MacArthur Drive.

2. Neighborhood Position/Comment? None at the time of printing.

3. Effect on public service and utilities? The addition of auto sales at this location will have
minimal effect on public services and utilities.

4. Legal Consideration/Reasonableness? The request is reasonable.

5. Will the approval have a stabilizing effect on surrounding properties? There will be

minimal change on the surrounding properties with the approval of the Conditional Use to
allow automobile sales at this location.

6. Is the site of adequate size for the development? The site is adequate in size to allow the
sale of automobiles.

7. Will this set a precedent for future rezoning? No, automobile sales requires approval of a
Conditional Use in the C4 zoning districts.

8. Should a different zoning classification be requested? No a Conditional Use is the

appropriate request to allow automobile sales within the C4 zoning district.



Item #6
Conditional Use 2023-12
Page 2 of 3

Summary:

The applicant is seeking approval of a Conditional Use to allow auto sales at this location. Auto sales
within the C4 zoning classification requires approval of a Conditional Use. Per the Zoning Ordinance
there shall be a ratio of one vehicle per every 450 square feet of open lot paved area. This ratio shall
include sales, employee, and customer vehicles. Open lot area does not include any structures. Based
on the current paved open lot area on this lot (approximately 11,400 square feet) a maximum of 25
vehicles are allowed.

Per the Zoning Ordinance fences shall not be allowed in the front yard of an automobile/vehicle
outdoor sales or leasing lot, except as otherwise required by separate regulation. The site currently
contains a 6-foot chain link fence along MacArthur Drive. The existing fence is to be removed prior
to the issuance of a zoning certificate for a business license.

Design Review Committee and Design Review Committee Recommendation: The applicant met
with the Design Review Committee on September 20, 2023. The Committee recommended approval
with conditions.

Conditions to Consider:

1. There shall be a ratio of one vehicle per every 450 square feet of open lot area. This ratio
shall include sales, employee, and customer vehicles. Open lot area does not include any
structures. Based on the current paved open area on the lot a maximum of 35 vehicles is
allowed.

2. A six (6) foot opaque privacy fence or a solid masonry wall shall be required when
automobile/vehicle outdoor sales or leasing lot abuts a residential use or zoning district.
Fences or walls shall not extend beyond the front building line of the abutting residential use
or zoning district.

3. Fences shall not be allowed in the front yard of an automobile/vehicle outdoor sales or leasing
lot, except as otherwise required by separate regulation.

4. Existing fences located in the front yard of an automobile/vehicle outdoor sales or leasing lot
shall be removed, unless required when adjacent to residential use.

5. Automobile/vehicle outdoor sales or leasing lots shall not utilize barbed wire or razor wire.
Any existing barbed wire or razor wire shall be removed.

6. All exterior automobile/vehicle outdoor sales or leasing lot lighting, located on a building or
free standing, shall be shielded and directed downward. Lighting shall be directed away from
abutting residential use or zoning district.



Item #6
Conditional Use 2023-12
Page 3 of 3

10.
11.

12.
13.

14.

Sales or lease vehicles shall be displayed on one of the following surfaces: asphalt paving or
concrete. Asphalt paving shall meet the Standards of Article 6 and approved by the City
Engineer. Sale or lease vehicles shall not be displayed on grass or gravel surfaces.
Automobile/vehicle outdoor sales or leasing lots and any structures located on the lot shall
meet all applicable City, County, State and Federal requirements and codes.

All signage shall meet the requirements of Article 14, Signs of the Zoning Ordinance.

Sale vehicles shall be secured after business hours and shall not be used as storage.

No inoperable or wrecked vehicles shall be stored or sold from the sales lot nor any vehicle
parts as are defined under the Chapter 8§ of the North Little Rock Code, Property Maintenance
and Nuisance Abatement Code.

Vehicle sales lot shall be maintained at all times.

The Planning Department shall perform an inspection to confirm all requirements of the
approval have been met.

By receipt of the City of North Little Rock business license, the holder shall acknowledge that
failure to comply with these conditions may result in loss of the Special Use and/or removal
of electric power meter.



itiona
Pl 1) =2 -

k=

THERESA DR

1 inch = 50 feet

25 50 100 Feet

Date: 9/28/2023 Map is not to survey accuracy




| Conditional Use # 202312

_ 4620 MacArthur Dr.

il To allow auto sales in C4.

NORTHDR —

N
1 inch = 100 feet P
| : | T 1 WA .
0 50 100 200 Feet 4 -
S

Date: 9/28/2023 Map is not to survey accuracy




yeur

J?

S902 HY ATISNAH
Dild 133815 HOYY 02BOZ
INI ‘ONIAZAUNS SHOO0YE

ov =1 9ER €202 ‘[Esn3ny 'EG

UV 430U 2RI YHON ‘3AUQ JNYHYIRIN 009y TREIFPY ATB0GIG

U} PUOM e

TINTG F IS W03

AIAUNS ALYIdOUd

UV 'AWn03 Se|nd JO SPIAI ‘99RSNOZZOZ "ON IuBNLSY| S2 P3pieaas PRBG AURLRA [ILL Jo 32Nag
"sesuexly ‘AJunoy pyse|nd ‘y00y
UHON Jo AlID 343 03 NOILIGAY J1DHID YSIHIHL ‘M 101

NOILJI¥OSIA TvO1

%—:—...._.:553
il
S
Graind

%,%

AUE JOpUN Syqesa)s
10§ @ ASNINS S{43 JO ALYIGE)) pue Aanns sy, TUSTOTE
CEAnE FT UG poiou YoU ¥ SSR73UEp

*240 ABAING pUE]

2R pUe LRI UMOYS Saed B!
PEE IO EATAT g5 5
RS, 3
sesueyiy JO 3135, 21 AQ D 326 SPIEPUEIS ) OF JUDP T8M ABAIDS SIYL L0431 PAIEIpUL pue) 0 s3ul Asadod
242 30 uojUIdo Aw S| PUB 707 “TE 3SNENY UD UO[SIAIIANS AW JBPUD BPEW Sem ASAINS 5|43 1YY AJRIED D) §1 SIYL
AYIIHLYID 580A3AENS




Item #7
Rezone 2023-21

Request: a rezoning from R3 to R4 to recognize (2) existing residential units on a single lot

Location of the Request: @ 4601 Pike Ave, NLR, AR

Applicant/Owner: Everett Harwell

P.C. Background: 1* time on the agenda

Site Characteristics: The property contains (2) residential units located on a single lot; the home

containing 1120 square feet constructed in the early 1940’s and a garage apartment containing 900
square feet located on 2-levels also constructed in the early 1940’s. There is also a 10’ by 30’
garage located on the lower level of the garage apartment building.

Master Street Plan; Pike Avenue is indicated as a collector street on the Master Street Plan. There

are no dedicated bikeways indicated on the Master Bike Plan adjacent to the site.

Surrounding Zoning & Uses

Direction | Surrounding Zoning | Surrounding Uses

North R3 Single Family with a Detached Garage Apartment
South R3 Single Family

East R3 Single Family and Two-family

West R3 Single Family

Background:

1.

Compatible with previous actions? To recognize an existing home and a garage
apartment located on a single lot requires a rezoning. The City has granted similar rezoning
requests in the past to recognize multiple units on a single lot.

Neighborhood Position/Comment? None at the time of printing.

Effect on public service and utilities? The homes are existing. There should be minimal
impact on the existing public services and utilities.

Legal Consideration/Reasonableness? The request is reasonable.

Will the approval have a stabilizing effect on surrounding properties? There will be
minimal impact on the adjacent properties.

Is the site of adequate size for the development? The two homes located on the lot are
existing and were constructed in the mid-1940’s as a single family home and garage
apartment.

Will this set a precedent for future rezoning? No.



Item #7
Rezone 2023-21
Page 2 of 2

8. Should a different zoning classification be requested? A rezoning to R4 is the
appropriate zoning classification to recognize the two homes on a single lot.

Summary:  The applicant is seeking a rezoning of the property to recognize two existing
residential units on a single parcel. The units have been on the property since the 1940°s. The
applicant recently upgraded the electrical service to the garage apartment. During the permitting
process, staff informed the applicant a rezoning was required to allow the 2" unit and to allow the
2™ unit to have a separate electrical service. The applicant indicated the garage apartment unit
has sat vacant for more than 12-months. Based on ordinance requirements once a property is not
in use with the non-conformity for a period of 12-months the non-conformity is no longer allowed.

Staff is supportive of the request.



Rezone Case #2023-21

e
g !
e

1 inch = 50 feet
0 25 50 100 Feet
rI-RI\‘ﬂm) LG & & i @

Date: 8/21/2023




Rezone Case #2023-21

; \ I 4-' II. i i . f‘- .
.'-:1,'| N '3 -‘k . |. & {d 4 & . 1 J " ] -I“. b
0 Ii' — — =L B J} ' ) y : I | P .
(- - i ‘ a1 [y
if o S e Gl ' ' ) . o
A I} A £ R3 ! . r‘- 2y : ¥
| r) If ¢ {’r ¥ # ||' I ¥ e =
.' (! 21" : =
1 I . ' p i‘ | )
: . f “
3 * —r— ST = — : = e - 2
L) : :I ] e — -
il Rt ’
‘ : . g o it SR Y Rezone #2023-21
T i i Al s J yl | /| T = '
| ) = - - % ™
. Ui o M) [ | @ |40t Pikeave
.} | | i 4 I o\..‘_- "-‘“‘. ¢ ; __3\ S ., _ -I d
_ _ ' “‘.I Sl (O N .|/ Torezone from R3 to R4 to recognize |
. j! i ; Rl | two existing units on one lot. .
L L . | [T i "'* I ' TN [

F 1 [ ")

1 inch = 150 feet

R et m 0 75 150 300 Feet
4 O
L Zonin = [ NN N NN MY NN M

Communtty Planning

Date: 8/21/2023




Item #8
Rezone 2023-22

Request: arezoning from CONS to C3

Location of the Request: @ the Southwest corner of I-40 and North Hills Blvd, NLR, AR

Applicant/Owner: First Pentecostal Church of Jesus Christ

P.C. Background: 1% time on the agenda

Site Characteristics: A portion of the site is wooded. The remaining area is a former golf driving
range. The property to the north was previously rezoned from CONS to C3. The area along North
Hills Blvd has developed with office warehouse type uses. North Hills Blvd adjacent to the site is
a two-lane roadway with open ditches for drainage.

Master Street Plan: North Hills Blvd is indicated on the Master Street Plan as a minor arterial.
There is a proposed bike trail indicated on the Master Bike Plan along North Hills Blvd.

Surrounding Zoning & Uses

Direction | Surrounding Zoning | Surrounding Uses

North C3 Wooded Commercial Zoned Property

South 12 Office Warehouse

East CONS Wooded Undeveloped CONS Zoned Property
West 12 Wooded Industrially Zoned Property

Background:

L. Compatible with previous actions? Previous rezonings in the area have rezoned a large
amount of property from CONS to Industrial and Commercial zoning designations.

2. Neighborhood Position/Comment? None at the time of printing.

3. Effect on public service and utilities? There should be minimal impact on public service

and utilities with the proposed rezoning of the property.

4. Legal Consideration/Reasonableness? The request is reasonable. There are other
commercial and industrial zoned properties in the area.

5. Will the approval have a stabilizing effect on surrounding properties? There should
be no impact with the rezoning of the property to C3.

6. Is the site of adequate size for the development? The site is adequate for development
as a commercial use.

7. Will this set a precedent for future rezoning? No, previous actions have rezoned a large
amount of property in the area to C3 and 12.

8. Should a different zoning classification be requested? No, C3 will support a future

commercial user.



Item #8
Rezone 2023-22
Page 2 of 2

Summary:

The applicant is seeking a rezoning of the property from CONS to C3 to allow the future
development of the property. The parcels to the north and west have been rezoned from CONS to
commercial and industrial zoning classifications and remain undeveloped. Property to the south
and southeast have been rezoned from CONS to 12 and have developed with office and office

warehouse uses.



Rezone Case #2023-22

"INTERSTATEA0 =

NTERS T

1 inch = 500 feet
250 500 1,000 Feet

Date: 9/12/2023




=t

Rezone #2023-22

North Hills Blvd. south of [-40

- — ]

F . v To rezone from CONS to

1 inch = 600 feet

300 600 1,200 Feet
LR ZoningdMap) R T R R

Community Manning

Y4y

Date: 9/12/2023




e i e ™
PR Y 3NCE GEEL £ R C3No) TN

e ADICD YIRS YT TN LI BL 83 7{mIv P CA) SIENY W bG 3 srower,

L WY TR TN i iScEacy oL :

HOBNKD TYIS00ILNId 1064 FHeHT IR N R BT T DIS'T BT aTTAYALADY GDoRL

3. “FRCHL BARSE @i 00 sbidd 43 Bw itk wore ] e 7 N6

NYid DNIGYND MPULISNOS U I LN Gl TN 2 T 0% Toh [ ATe
T wa are 9y 1Eel (015 s N

ny
Ayeemng TTTA/AND

UEOTHZY S WA

1 e T D, ez ;B a3 Tee S
T ARl R fo/ Rt

i
T e

St g et
(BN LY R k e - = WX ue ias '3
Wy MRS M M T Al X Cee Rir o, CBAE e

S0V I DRIV D2

wmasYa

MOUYDLLA GO0, |
|

Aoy [ . e e
7 A O et am B, Pl
B B A

= i 3 - .
- \. D=

N

Ajloe4 133fo4d pasodoud € 2indi4



Item #9
Rezone 2023-23

Request: arezoning from R4 to C6 to allow development of a duplex

Location of the Request: @ 800 N Olive St, NLR, AR

Applicant: Thomas Pownall, Thomas Engineering
Owner: Riverwalk Rentals, LLC

P.C. Background: 1% time on the agenda

Site Characteristics: The site is located on the southeast corner of E 8 and N Olive Streets.

Master Street Plan: E 8™ and N Olive Streets are classified as local streets on the Master Street
Plan. There are no dedicated bikeways located in the area.

Surrounding Zoning & Uses

Direction | Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Uses

North R4 Single Family

South C6 Duplex

East R4 & 12 Single Family & Office Warehouse
West C6 Single Family & Vacant C6

Background:

1. Compatible with previous actions? A large portion of the area was rezoned from R4 to
C6 within the past few years.

2. Neighborhood Position/Comment? None at the time of printing.

3. Effect on public service and utilities? There should be minimal impact on public services

and utilities.
4. Legal Consideration/Reasonableness? The request is reasonable.

5. Will the approval have a stabilizing effect on surrounding properties? There should
be minimal impact on the surrounding properties with the rezoning from R4 to C6.

6. Is the site of adequate size for the development? The site is adequate in size for
development.

7. Will this set a precedent for future rezoning? No, the area contains a mix of R4 and C6
zoning classifications. Both C6 and R4 allow for development of one, two and multi-
family housing.

8. Should a different zoning classification be requested? No, C6 zoning allows for

development of residential as proposed by the applicant.



Item #9
Rezone 2023-23
Page 2 of 2

Summary:

In June of 2021, the Commission considered a Master Plan for the East Argenta area. The
applicant proposed the rezoning of lots within their ownership (32 lots) from RS, C5 and I1 to C6
to allow a mixed use development containing commercial, residential, multi-family, activity
courtyards and green allies. Though the majority of the lots were contiguous, there were a few
lots not owned by the applicants sprinkled in the area that were not part of the rezoning request.
Those properties remained zoned R4. The applicant has since purchased additional lots and is
seeking the rezoning of these lots from R4 to C6 to continue development of the East Argenta
Master Plan.

The request for rezoning aligns with the East Argenta Master Plan and the stated goals of mixed-
use development and walkability in the 2010 Master Plan for the Argenta District. Staff supports
the applicant's rezoning request to C6 in an effort to further realize the goals outlined in the City's

2010 plan.



Rezone Case #2023-23

1 inch = 30 feet

rLR m 0 15 30 60 Feet

Community Planning

Date: 9/18/2023




SA'JONES DR

Rezone #2023-23

800 N. Olive St.

To rezone from R4 to C6. . N

——— TN

L SRR T ENUTNED @1

SBISHOP LINDSEYAVE = T
. BISHOP, LINDSE Y/AVE i =

o~
[ =

1 inch = 100 feet
50 100 200 Feet

0
o g o IF g4 ¢

Date: 9/18/2023




CIVIL EN

MR e e socery THOMAS ENGINEERING COMPANY il Pl o, BURTETIe
ok ;"%%NWR%T% —_— RESIDENTIAL-COMMERCIAL—INDUSTRIAL

%

NORTHOLIVE STREET(60:R/V)

=
o
2
i-—
L]
LLf
o
’_.
(5]
2z
=i
(s
’_
)
bt
L4

REZONING MAP
LOT 6, BLOCK 47

. CUNNINGHAM'S ADDITION
DATE: 8/13/23 City of North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas

SCALE: 1" = 30"




Item #10
Rezone 2023-24

Request: arezoning from R4 to C6 to allow development of a duplex

Location of the Request: @ 720 N Olive St, NLR, AR

Applicant: Thomas Pownall, Thomas Engineering

Owner: Riverwalk Properties, LLC

P.C. Background: 1% time on the agenda

Site Characteristics: The site is located on the northeast corner of E 8% and N Olive Streets.

Master Street Plan: E 8% and N Olive Streets are classified as local streets on the Master Street

Plan. There are no dedicated bikeways located in the area.

Surrounding Zoning & Uses

Direction | Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Uses

North R4 Single Family

South Cé6 Duplex

East R4 & 12 Single Family & Office Warehouse
West C6 Single Family & Vacant C6

Background:

1.

Compatible with previous actions? A large portion of the area was rezoned from R4 to
C6 within the past few years.

Neighborhood Position/Comment? None at the time of printing.

Effect on public service and utilities? There should be minimal impact on public services
and utilities.

Legal Consideration/Reasonableness? The request is reasonable.

Will the approval have a stabilizing effect on surrounding properties? There should
be minimal impact on the surrounding properties with the rezoning from R4 to C6.

Is the site of adequate size for the development? The site is adequate in size for
development.

Will this set a precedent for future rezoning? No, the area contains a mix of R4 and C6
zoning classifications. Both C6 and R4 allow for development of one, two and multi-
family housing.

Should a different zoning classification be requested? No, C6 zoning allows for
development of residential as proposed by the applicant.



Item #10
Rezone 2023-24
Page 2 of 2

Summary:

In June of 2021, the Commission considered a Master Plan for the East Argenta area. The
applicant proposed the rezoning of lots within their ownership (32 lots) from RS, C5 and I1 to C6
to allow a mixed use development containing commercial, residential, multi-family, activity
courtyards and green allies. Though the majority of the lots were contiguous, there were a few
lots not owned by the applicants sprinkled in the area that were not part of the rezoning request.
Those properties remained zoned R4. The applicant has since purchased additional lots and is
seeking the rezoning of these lots from R4 to C6 to continue development of the East Argenta
Master Plan.

The request for rezoning aligns with the East Argenta Master Plan and the stated goals of mixed-
use development and walkability in the 2010 Master Plan for the Argenta District. Staff supports
the applicant's rezoning request to C6 in an effort to further realize the goals outlined in the City's
2010 plan.



Rezone Case #2023-24

1 inch = 30 feet

15 30
IS T Y N A T N M |

Date: 9/18/2023




Rezone Case #2023-24

| Rezone #2023-24
720 N. Olive St.

To rezone from R4 to C6. , °

¢6

m ;;I : :

L LA

T X BISHOP.LINDSEYAVE | "= :
. 5 _ :

1 inch = 100 feet
200 Feet

50 100
T Y N A TR T N

Date: 9/18/2023




NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72116 RESIDENTIAL—COMMERCIAL~INDUSTRIAL
TELE. No. 501-753-4463

Em* THOMAS ENGINEERING COMPANY ~Cpu.menmms-uum smmerrs

_—_m__

! NORTH OLIVE STREET (60'R/W)

Co

0y
WEST 04 FEET &
OFLOT1 . S\

=
L
L
I
F=
14p}
ae
f—
{ve]
2
)
=g
uJj

127 56w

REZONING MAP
THE WEST 94 FEET OF LOT 1, BLOCK 44,

' ORIGINAL TOWN OF ARGETNA,
gé:f':”zz:w City of North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas




Item #11
SD 2023-61 Division 49 Add Lots 1 — 5 Combined - Preliminary & Final Plat located in the 4900 Block

of Division St

Hillside Modifications - Excavation, grading, filling, hillside cuts, construction of retaining structures,
and similar topographic alternations when such alterations are performed in an area where: (1) the
slope is steeper than a vertical rise of 1 foot for each 4 feet of horizontal distance (referred to
hereinafter as a “4:1 slope”) prior to the alteration; or (2) the final grade is steeper than a 4:1 slope
between abutting lots or tracts of land, except hillside cuts or retaining structures less than or equal to
five feet (5°) in vertical height.

1.

Engineering requirements on detention:
a. Stormwater detention plan will be required during Site Plan Review process.

Engineering requirements before the plat will be signed:

a. Provide ' street improvements (street, drainage, curb and gutter, sidewalk, streetlights) or a
performance bond.

b. Street improvements must be approved by City Engineer and accepted by City Council.

Planning requirements before the plat will be signed:

a. Plat will be submitted to NLR Planning Department in CAD compatible DXF and/or DWG format,
tied to Arkansas State Plane Coordinates.

b. Provide streetlights or provide a bond.

c. Provide ROW dedication along Division Street to meet the Master Street Plan.

d. Provide 10’ utility easements around property perimeter.

Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:
a. Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.

Meet the requirements of the Master Street Plan, including:

a. Provide 5' sidewalks and ramps with a minimum of 5° green space between sidewalk and curb to
ADA standards and City standards.

b. Provide % street improvements to meet the Master Street Plan.

c. Provide ROW dedication to meet the Master Street Plan.

Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:

All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.

Tree plantings shall be required for all new Single-Family and Two-Family dwellings.

One (1) tree shall be required for each lot and to be located within (10”) of the front property line.
Trees shall be (2 72”) inch caliper or greater at time of planting. Caliper shall be measured at (3°)
above the ground surface.

pe o

Meet the following requirements concerning signage.
Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal.
Meet the requirements of CAW, including:

a. NO OBJECTIONS; All Central Arkansas Water requirements in effect at the time of request for
water service must be met.



Item #11
SD 2023-61 Division 49 Add Lots 1 — 5 Combined - Preliminary & Final Plat

Page 2 of 2

10. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater, including:
a. Separate sanitary sewer service lines are required for each parcel.
b. Each parcel will require a new tap installed by NLRW Staff to connect to Sanitary Sewer
Facilities. Please contact our office for scheduling and payment ($350.00 each).

11. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.

12. Meet the requirements of Rock Region Metro.



Ttem #12
Rezone 2023-25

Request: arezoning from C4 to 12 to allow a truck repair facility

Location of the Request: @ 11800 Maybelline Rd, NLR, AR

Applicant: Thomas Pownall, Thomas Engineering
Owner: Phelan Development LLC

P.C. Background: 1* time on the agenda

Site Characteristics: The site is the former Jimmy Doyle Country Club. The applicant is
proposing to purchase the property, rezone the property from C4 to 12 and redevelop the site with
a truck repair facility.

Master Street Plan: Maybelline Rd is indicated on the Master Street Plan as a local commercial
street. The road also serves as the I-40 Frontage Road. There are no bikeways located in the area.

Surrounding Zoning & Uses

Direction | Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Uses

North NA I-40

South C4 Truck-O-Mat

East C4 Liquor Store, Undeveloped C4 Property
West 12 Warehousing and Storage

Background:

1. Compatible with previous actions? The Commission has considered rezonings for
similar type uses within the area.
2. Neighborhood Position/Comment? None at the time of printing.

3. Effect on public service and utilities? There should be minimal impact on public services
and utilities with the rezoning and redevelopment of the site.

4. Legal Consideration/Reasonableness? The request is reasonable.

5. Will the approval have a stabilizing effect on surrounding properties? The approval
should have minimal impact on surrounding properties.

6. Is the site of adequate size for the development? The site is adequate in size for
development as proposed.

7. Will this set a precedent for future rezoning? No, the approval will not set precedent for
future rezonings for similar type requests.

8. Should a different zoning classification be requested? No, 12 is the appropriate zoning

classification for the use as proposed.



Item #12
Rezone 2023-25
Page 2 of 2

Summary:

The applicant is seeking a rezoning of the property from the current C4 zoning classification to I2
to allow the redevelopment of the site with large implement/vehicle repair. The Zoning Ordinance
defines Large Implement/Vehicle — Repair as general repair of commercial vehicles and large
implements, including but not limited to agricultural equipment, motor homes, recreational
vehicles, marine vehicles, and tractor-trailers. Such repair includes the rebuilding or reconditioning
of engines, implements, or trailers, including bodywork, welding, painting service, muffler
services, and/or transmission repair.

As a separate item on the current agenda, the applicant is seeking approval via Site Plan Review
(§D2023-64), to allow the redevelopment of the site with a 33,600 square foot repair facility. The
site will contain 6,400 square feet of office space along with 27,200 square feet of service area.
The plan indicates the facility will be developed with 22 service bays.

Parking for the proposed uses is based on (1) space per 250 sf of gross floor area of the use plus
(1) space per employee at maximum shift plus (1) space per work bay. Based on this calculation,
the site is required to provide 73 on-site parking spaces. The site plan presented (SD2023-64)
indicates 132 spaces being provided.



Rezone Case #2023-25

re 2
A
waa\\

LA A S AT R

a

o

1inch = 150 feet

T 300 Feet
N TN TR TN NN T S N

Date: 9/18/2023




Rezone #2023-25
| 11800 Maybelline Rd.

To rezone from C4 to 12 to allow
B a truck repair facility.

) Ib!rq LI bkt

'.z
.

i

: X .I s

g . = - -

. (INARD RDEEEEE ]
=l P

1 inch = 300 feet

155 310 620 Feet
I N T NN Y TN N N |

Date: 9/18/2023




——d L | VESMC W oweCuein T -
g. »-llb ..Bﬂr!ig.l qm“‘gx.—.l Pl-
- ANVAR — R
Y AU TWINWMON v IOty , B T e B B . - -
QOIUCAAMNIC 101 | SYROHL TVOS IDdVED | | —T — - -
e d L | mewonam || SRS R .
| e *weLon cscww awe M1 I
[ | !aSIl‘ NIVELES DISCTTE SAKTING 308 &
AN TT0A0 81 E! iéi. N
i L it _In-ﬁ..mg % T 0 0 RO EM Y MAYINOO LTL L B
o _ s deamat ooty ¥ _
B - Y iﬁl&ﬁm
_ TR | | cmcmoscormmmanussem s ESaste,
o o GOV SOV OB T
.
— i -

By 021022 INSIOTEAZA NVIERHA-SNIEND CELING




Item #13
SD 2023-64 Jimmy Doyle Country Club Add Lot 1 Replat and SPR @ 11800 Maybelline Rd

1. Engineering requirements on detention:

a. Pay the drainage in-lieu fee of $5000/acre for commercial/industrial development instead of providing
onsite detention. (OR) Provide on-site stormwater detention as well as clear calculations showing
detention volume is sufficient, or demonstrate to City Engineer on-site detention is not required (based
on proposed development) by providing detention calculations showing pre and post site runoff
comparisons.

2. Engineering requirements before the plat will be signed:
a. Street improvements must be approved by City Engineer and accepted by City Council.
b. Show and label boundary of detention area as a drainage easement.

3. Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:

a. A signed and recorded plat must be on file with the Planning Department.

b. Prior to construction, Owner’s Engineer shall submit stormwater design report for review and
approval by the City Engineer. Stormwater plans and detention calculations are to be approved by
City Engineer and a written approval provided to Planning Department. Drainage submittal shall
include, as a minimum, the following:

i. Proposed pipe material specifications.
ii. Proposed trench and bedding details, materials and specifications.

c. Provide CNLR Grading Permit application to City Engineer with grading plans.

d. Provide CNLR Stormwater Permit application to City Engineer with half size erosion control plan
showing silt fence, storm inlet protection, and drainage details.

e. Provide CNLR driveway/curb cut permit application to City Engineer or copy of ARDOT driveway
permit if State Highway.

f. Provide CNLR Floodplain Development Permit application to City Engineer.

g. Provide copy of Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) Stormwater Permit to City
Engineer.

h. Provide copy of Arkansas Department of Health approval for water and sewer facilities to
NLR Planning Department if an extension of a main is required.

i. Prior to construction, Owner’s Architect/Engineer shall submit signed construction plans and
specifications (PDF format) to NLR Planning Department.

j. Prior to construction, Owner’s Architect/Engineer shall submit digital maps for all stormwater
drainage features in an ArcGIS or AutoCAD file to the City Engineer. The digital maps shall be
natively in State Plane coordinate system, Arkansas North Zone, North American Datum 1983, units
as feet; or the map must have sufficient points for georeferencing. The associated attribute data table
from the submitted file shall match the fields contained within the “SW Attribute Data Entry
Template.xlsx” as provided by City Engineering Department. All Control, Linear, and Junction map
features will be annotated by a unique identifier that will correspond to the same unique identifier in
the “SW Attribute Data Entry Template.xlsx” or GIS attribute table. Data for each attribute column in
the “SW Attributed Data Entry Template.xlsx™ file shall be chosen from the drop-down options of
each cell, or chosen as “Other” (if not listed) and described in the comments field. At the completion
of the project, As-Builts of these shapefiles in ArcGIS or AutoCAD format, along with associated
attribute data table, shall be submitted to the City Engineer.

4. Meet the requirements of the City Engineer, including:
a. Prior to any excavation/street cuts within street ROW, provide CNLR Excavation Permit to City
Engineer and Barricade Plan Permit to NLR Traffic Services.



Item #13
SD 2023-64 Jimmy Doyle Country Club Add Lot 1 Replat and SPR @ 11800 Maybelline Rd
Page 2 of 5

b. Contractor shall notify City Engineer at least 1 day prior to the construction of all stormwater pipes
and inlet structures within City ROW,

c. At the end of construction, Owner/Developer shall have a Professional Engineer, licensed in the State
of Arkansas, certify that all street and stormwater improvements in conjunction with this subdivision
and/or the proposed development have been inspected and constructed in accordance with the
approved plans and meet all City of North Little Rocks Standard Specifications.

d. If the proposed subdivision/development is located in a FEMA designated floodplain, the first floors
of any building or house are to be a minimum of 1' above the 100-Year Base Flood Elevation (BFE).
At the completion of the project, submit Elevation Certificate to City Engineer.

e. If the proposed subdivision/development is located in a FEMA designated floodplain, submit Letter

of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F) at end of project and provide a copy of FEMA approval to

City Engineer.

Driveway radii shall be labeled and shall have 25’ minimum radii and be built according to CNLR

standard details (available at NLR Engineering Department).

Driveways shall not be closer than 40' to adjoining streets or 10' from adjoining property lines.

Spacing between proposed commercial/industrial driveways shall not be closer than 40°.

Driveway widths shall be labeled and shall be 10’ minimum to 40’ maximum.

Cross drains in the ROW shall be labeled and shall be RCP with flared end sections unless otherwise

approved by Engineering.

k. All driveways are to be concrete within the ROW.

]

s

5. Planning requirements before the plat will be signed:
a. Plat will be submitted to NLR Planning Department and tied to Arkansas State Plane Coordinates.
b. Provide ROW dedication along Maybelline Road to meet the Master Street Plan.
c. Provide 10’ utility easements around property perimeter.

6. Other Boards approvals required before applying for a building permit.
a. Provide approved City Council ordinance granting approval of the Rezoning.
b. Provide approval of the Board of Zoning Adjustment to allow the placement of a fence in front of the

building.

7. Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:
a. Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.
b. Provide dumpster location. Dumpster to have masonry screening on (3) sides with a solid opaque
gate enclosure.
c. No fence is to be located in front of the building.
d. All exterior lighting shall be shielded and not encroach onto neighboring properties.

8. Meet the requirements of the Master Street Plan, including:
a. Sidewalks not required due to location along interstate.

9. Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:

All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.

Prior to the issuance of a building permit provide street trees or provide a bond.

Prior to the issuance of a building permit provide streetlights or provide a bond.

Any new site development must comply with the City’s landscape and buffer ordinance
requirements.

S SRS B



Item #13
SD 2023-64 Jimmy Doyle Country Club Add Lot 1 Replat and SPR @ 11800 Maybelline Rd
Page 3 of 5

e. Street trees are to be chosen from Section 7.5 of the North Little Rock zoning code Trees from Table
B shall be spaced every thirty (30) feet to achieve the required number of trees; trees from Table C
shall be spaced every twenty-five (25) feet; or trees from Table D shall be used if beneath overhead
power lines and spaced every fifteen (15) feet.

f. Trees shall be planted at (1) tree per (6) parking spaces.

i.  Trees ten (10) feet from the edge of parking area may serve for the parking lot shading
requirements, but may not satisfy more than fifty (50) percent of the overall requirement for the
parking lot or area.

ii.  Parking lot trees are to be chosen from Table B or C, Section 7.5 of the North Little Rock zoning
code, Table D shall be used if beneath overhead power lines.

g A continuous screen of shrubs shall be required for any landscape strip adjacent to any parking area.

1. Only shrubs from the approved planting list will count toward this requirement, unless approved
by the Planning Commission. Shrubs shall be eighteen (18) inches in height at planting and be
planted a maximum three (3) feet apart.

h. Note turf, groundcover, or mulch (species or type) on the development plan

1. Ground cover shall be selected from Section 7.5 of the North Little Rock zoning code. Plant
materials / turf from Table J, or mulch of shredded bark or stone shall be applied in all landscaped
areas.

i. Plant material shall be irrigated by an automatic underground irrigation system.

j.  Wheel stops shall be required when parking areas abut sidewalks, landscaped areas or pedestrian
areas. No portion of a vehicle shall encroach onto a sidewalk, landscaped area or pedestrian area.

k. Provide a buffer/screening adjacent to the dissimilar land use to the west. The development of the C4
property requires a half screen (as defined by Section 7.3.2) adjacent to the 12 property.

i.  Each side and rear yard buffer areas shall be five (5) percent of the lot width and depth. Buffer
areas shall not be less than six (6) feet or greater than forty (40) feet.

ii.  Trees from Section 7.5, Table B or C shall be spaced every twenty (20) feet; or trees from Table
D shall be used if beneath overhead power lines and spaced every twenty (20) feet.

iii. A six (6) foot tall, continuous opaque screen shall be provided. An opaque screen may include
one (1) of the following: wall, fence, site grading, or plantings. The opaque screen must be
opaque in all seasons.

1. Provide plant material legend graphically indicating the different plant materials. Provide plant
material list and specifications indicating minimum plant material size at installation.

10. Meet the following requirements concerning signage:
a. The ground signs may not be located within the sight triangle
b. All signs require a permit and separate review.
c. All signs must comply with Article Fourteen — Sign Code.

11. Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal, including:
a. Provide an approved fire protection plan.
b. Meet the requirements of the 2021 Arkansas Fire Prevention Code including:
i.  There shall be a fire hydrant within 400° of any portion the building if unsprinklered, within
600’ if sprinklered. (Volume 1 Section 507.5.1)
1.  Meet the hydrant spacing and fire flow requirements of the fire code. (Volume 1 Appendix B
& C)



Item #13
SD 2023-64 Jimmy Doyle Country Club Add Lot 1 Replat and SPR @ 11800 Maybelline Rd
Page 4 of 5

iii.

iv.

Group S-1 storage facilities with fire areas exceeding 12,000 square feet shall be equipped

with an automatic fire sprinkler system. (Volume 2 Section 903.2.9)

Group S-1 storage facilities used for the repair of commercial motor vehicles where the fire

area exceeds 5000 square feet shall have an automatic fire sprinkler system. (Volume 2

Section 903.2.9.1)

Fire barriers separating an occupancy into different fire areas shall have a fire resistance rating of
not less than that indicated in Table 707.3.10. (Volume 2 Table 707.3.10)

12. Meet the requirements of CAW, including:
a.

b.
c.

All Central Arkansas Water requirements in effect at the time of request for water service must be
met.

A water main extension will be needed to provide water service to this property.

Submit plans for water facilities and/or fire protection system to Central Arkansas Water for review.
Plan revisions may be required after additional review.

Contact Central Arkansas Water regarding procedures for installation of water facilities and/or fire
service. Approval of plans by the Arkansas Department of Health Engineering Division and Little
Rock Fire Department is required.

If there are facilities that need to be adjusted and/or relocated, contact Central Arkansas Water. That
work would be done at the expense of the developer.

Contact Central Arkansas Water regarding the size and location of the water meter.

Due to the nature of this facility, installation of an approved reduced pressure zone backflow
preventer assembly (RPZ) is required on the domestic water service. This assembly must be
installed prior to the first point of use. Central Arkansas Water (CAW) requires that upon
installation of the RPZA, successful tests of the assembly must be completed by a Certified
Assembly Tester licensed by the State of Arkansas and approved by CAW. The test results must be
sent to CAW's Cross Connection Section within ten days of installation and annually thereafter.
Contact the Cross Connection Section at 377-1226 if you would like to discuss backflow prevention
requirements for this project.

Fire sprinkler systems which do not contain additives such as antifreeze shall be isolated with a
double detector check valve assembly. If additives are used, a reduced pressure zone backflow
preventer shall be required.

13. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater, including:
a. NLRW staff will investigate sewer main parallel to western property line to determine if it

b.

C.

can/should be abandoned. Information will be provided before NLR Design Review Meeting
on September 20®. (Fieldwork on the sewer main parallel to the western property line should
be abandoned but there is still a portion of the investigation that has not been completed.
Once the final fieldwork is complete NLRW will contact the project engineer with the final
results.)

Provide a 15’ exclusive sanitary sewer easements for all public sanitary sewer mains within
property boundaries.

Please submit a full set of plans to NLRW for review and approval prior to construction.

14. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric, including:
a. Customer must pay to remove area lights and poles if they want them removed.
b. NLR Electric requires a 5’ easement on the west side of the property.



Item #13

SD 2023-64 Jimmy Doyle Country Club Add Lot 1 Replat and SPR @ 11800 Maybelline Rd
Page 5 of 5

15. Meet the requirements of Rock Region Metro.



Item # 14
Special Use 2023-27

Request: to allow the continuation of a Type 2 Short-term Rental in an R1 zone

Location of the Request: @ 3818 N Magnolia St, NLR, AR

Applicant/Owner: Smokey Lane Apostolic Church of Jesus Christ Northside Academy

P.C. Background: Ordinance #9559 Adopted by the NLR City Council on April 10, 2023,
established the Comprehensive Code to Regulate Issuance of, and Conditions Associated with, Short-
Term Residential Rental Business Licenses. The applicant is seeking approval to allow a Type 2
(non-owner occupied) Short-Term Rental in a R1 zoning district. The applicant did not have a
business license prior to the city issuing a moratorium on business license for Short-term rentals but
the applicant has documentation the unit was listed on a hosting platform prior to the adoption of the
ordinance regulating Short-term Rentals.

Master Street Plan: Magnolia Street is classified as a local street on the Master Street Plan. There
are no dedicated bikeways located in the area.

Surrounding Zoning and Uses

Direction Surroundine Zoning Surrounding Uses
North R1 Single Family
South R2 Single Family
East R2 Single Family
West R1 Single Family

1. Compatible with previous actions? A Special Use is the process established by City Council for
consideration of Type 2 Short-term Rentals within R1 zoning districts, which were operational
prior to April 10, 2023.

2. Neighborhood Position/Comment? Staff has received a few calls with questions regarding the
proposed Special Use.

3. Effect on public service and utilities? There should be minimal impact on public services and
utilities.

4. Legal Consideration/Reasonableness? The request is reasonable.

5. Will the approval have a stabilizing effect on surrounding properties? Short-term rentals are
similar to hotel/motels with a transient population, which could potentially have a negative impact
on the neighborhood.

6. Is the site of adequate size for the development? The site is developed with a single family
home. There is an existing concrete driveway located within the front yard allowing sufficient
on-site parking.

7. Will this set a precedent for future rezoning? A Special Use is required for Short-term Rentals
in residentially zoned areas.



Item # 14
Special Use 2023-27
Page 2 of 3

8. Should a different zoning classification be requested? No, a Special Use is the appropriate
request.

Summary:

The applicant is seeking a Special Use to allow a Type 2, (non-owner occupied) Short-term Rental
unit in a R1 zoning district. The recently adopted ordinance by City Council established the criteria
for applying for a Short-term Rental. The applicant did not have a business license prior to the City
placing a moratorium on Short-term rentals. The applicant has provided documentation the Short-
term Rental was in use prior to the adoption of the Short-term Rental Ordinance by the City of North
Little Rock by providing a backdated listing and a copy of rental reviews prior to April 10, 2023. The
applicant has provided a site plan, including the area of on-site parking. This request is to recognize
the unit as non-conforming.

Design Review Committee and Design Review Committee Recommendation: The applicant met
with the Design Review Committee on September 20, 2023.

Conditions to Consider:

1. Approval of the Special Use does not ensure approval of a Business License. The applicant must
comply with all other applicable requirements within the Comprehensive Code to Regulate
Issuance of, and Conditions Associated with, Short-Term Residential Rental Business Licenses
(Ordinance #9559 Adopted by the NLR City Council on April 10, 2023)

2. Per §8.2.3(d), Revocation and Limitations, Time Limitations, a Business License must be
obtained within (1) year of Special Use approval.

3. The owner or owner representative for all short-term residential rentals shall post in a prominent
common area or near the front door within the short-term rental:

the physical street address assigned by the City;

owner or owner representative name and telephone number;

local contact person name and telephone number;

telephone numbers for the North Little Rock Police Department, the North Little Rock

FireDepartment, and North Little Rock Code Enforcement;

the phone number to report a safety complaint;

solid waste (trash) pick-up day;

the maximum occupancy limits as approved by the business license;

the maximum number of parking spaces available on-site;

a copy of the Good Neighbor Brochure; and,

notification that a guest, local contact person, responsible person, or owner may be

cited and/or fined by the City in accordance with this Ordinance.

4. The number of occupants is limited to a maximum of (2) people per bedroom, plus (2), for the

entire unit when the property is operated as a Short-Term Rental.

Commercial functions and other similar events are prohibited at the transient use site.

6. Special events including, but not limited to, weddings, receptions, anniversaries, private parties,
fundraisers and business seminars are prohibited from occurring at the transient use site.

oo o

S Em e

b



Item # 14
Special Use 2023-27
Page 3 of 3

7. No recreational vehicle, trailer, other vehicle or structure not classified as a permanent
residential dwelling may be used as a Short-Term Rental.

8. The minimum number of off-street parking spaces required for motor vehicles of overnight
guests at the transient use site shall comply with the applicable residential requirements set
forth in the NLR Zoning Ordinance.

9. Signage advertising the unit as a Short-Term Rental is not permitted

10. The addition of any outdoor recreational activities must be reviewed by staff prior to installing.



7.
R
S|
)
Q@
P
=
® |
&)
S |
S”

30 feet

1 inch

Map)

Oxtho

R

Community Plonning

A

Not an actual survey

Date: 8/7/2023




Special Use #2023-27

el e il ot

: = ) i LT __,_L_a : o -\. ol
=< Special Use 2023-27 ' i . —— . 2. i _.-:*.@_’:‘;;‘-

3818 N. Magnolia St. , { .- g -

To allow a type 2 short-term ¥ 3 T IR3 @ e _ ¥ } .
rental in an R1 zone. - -RA1- — > i e

RI—— . ] ]

- ‘ e B s

|
3 L
- i i 3
- - J:
R2 = = ;
RZA o

1 . I:. i
411 { R’

1inch = 100 feet N
-
| I | I | )

0 50 100 200 Feet
Date: 8/7/2023 Not an actual survey




10/3/23, 8:03 AM 3818 N Magnolia St - Google Maps

Go gle Maps 3818 N Magnolia St

Imagery ©2023 Airbus, Maxar Technologies, Map data ©2023 Google

3818 N Magnolia St

Building
Directions Save Nearby Send to Share

phone

© 3818 N Magnolia St, North Little Rock, AR 72116

Photos

https://www.google.com/maps/place/3818+N+Magnolia+St,+North+Little+Rock,+AR+72116/@34.7908246,-92.2639846,57m/data=!3m1!1e314m6!3m...

Google

20 ft

1/2



